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Strategic Report

The Direclors are pleased fo present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2017, which sets out:

» A fair review of the business of the Group; the Group comprises Sepura plc and its subsidiaries, as listed in Note 5 of the
Parent Company accounts.

» A description of the principal rigks and uncertainties facing the Group and how they are managed; and
r A summary of the Group’s approach to Corporate and Social Responsibility.

The rasulis show that trading continued to be extremely challenging, following the trend sat in the first half of the year. Reported
revenues for FY17 were €110.2 million, compered io £€189.7 million last year, reflecting:

) The completion of the substantial one off Saudi Arabian contract in FY18 (which had contributed €28.7 million of
revenues last yaar);

T
> The changias to the Group's business model and the decision to withdraw from the DMR market that were announced In
the Group's preliminary results for the year ended 1 Aprll 2016;

’ Specific challenges facing the Group's customers in core markets that were announced in the Group’s interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2016; and

> Perceived uncertainty over the Group's future in the light of its financlal performance and the Recommended Offer by
Hytera Communications Corporation Limited to acquire the Company.

Business inodel review
At the start of the year the Board undertook a thorough review of the Group’s business model and axplored ways of improving
the cash generation of the business, and determined 1o undertake the following measures:

H Improving sales phasing — the Group's revenue profile had historically baen heavily welghted to the year-end, reducing
vislbility of eamings and necessltating Increased inventory levels to support potential business. Reducing the Group's
emphasis on year-and revenus by matching orders recelved from the Group's commercial partners to the dellvery and
payment schedules agreed with their end-users and placing restriclions on the approval of discounting arrangements and
credit terms would provide better visibllity of earnings and margin improvement;

H Aligning manufacturing fimescales with customer delivery schedules — The Group's Teltronic business had typically
incurred certain costs relatively early in the contract period and recognised the associated revenuas at that point. The
Group has altered the Teitronic manufacturing process to manage working capital more effectively and as a result,
product manufacturing now occurs later in the contract period than was previously the case with a resultant impact on the
timing of revenue belng recognised. Aligning manufacturing timescales more closely to customer requirements reduces
stock holding and corresponding working capital requirements, shortening the Group's working capital cycle; and

H Reducing credit risk profile —the Group's exposure to credit rigk (including, whera appropriate, alighing payment terms
more clossly to contract performance and/or product delivery and dedlining business until credit can be confirmed) is
more actively managed, reducing exposure to delayed payment or non-payment of customer involces.

Whithdrawal from DMR

in addition, the Board undertook a review of ite DMR strategy and concluded It would not be possible to achleve further market
penetration without significant addiional investment. it therefore decided to withdraw from the DMR market, instead allocating
the Group's resources to opportunities which are more immediately revenue and cash generative within the TETRA market,
such as those within the North American reglon and the transportation sector.

Specific challenges In core markets
Revenue for the ysar was also affected by specific challenges facing the Group’s customers in core markets, including delayed
refresh cycles and further unceriainty over the Emergency Services Network ("ESN") in the UK.

In a number of key markets customers ware expected to refresh their ageing fleets of TETRA radios, which are 6-7 years okd. It
became clear in September that capital budgets were being reallocated to othar priorities as robustness of the Group's products
was such that their operational lives were being extended beyond the expected 5-6 years. Since the end of the year refresh
cycies in some of these markets have commenced, which will make a positive contribution to the Group’s FY18 performance.
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Strategic Report (continued)

At the same time, the UK market continued to face significant uncertainty as ESN, the proposed replacemeant for the UK national
public safety TETRA network, faced further delays. Several of the Group’s UK customers had been expected to commence
purchasing ESN-ready devices later in the financial year, but TETRA and ESN device procurements have been deferred
pending more preciss Information on the timing of transition to ESN.

The Group continues to support its UK customers through repalr and warranty services, which partially mitigate the ongoing
impact of these delays on the Group's results.

Perceived uncertainty assoclated with the acqulsition by Hytera Communications Corporation Limited

On 4 November 2016 the Company announced that it was in preliminary talks with Hytera Communications Corporation Limited
{"Hytera") regarding a possible offer for the entire issued and to be issuad share capital of the Company (“the Offer”). On 18
Decembaer 2016 the Board announced it was recommending a cash offer for the Company by Projact Shortway Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hytera ("the Acquisition”) and the Acquisition was subsequently completed on 25 May 2017; further
information on the impact of the Acquisition since the end of the financlal year are given In Nots 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In the Intarvening period uncertainty as to the timing of completion and the possible Impact on Sepura’s product portfolio and
future development rcadmap resulted in some customens delaying procurement pending the outcome of the Offer. The Group
has subsequently secured some of this delayed business in the current financial year, and is addressing residual concermns
amongst those remaining customers seeking additional reassurance.

Capital Raising and financing

On 4 April 2016 the Group announced that it had experienced an increase in net debt from an expansion in working capital
together with further costs relating to the Teltronic acquisition and additional Investment to accelerate cost synergles. On 26
April 2016 the Group announced that it was In discussion with its debt providers and major shareholders conceming its level of
indebtedness and on 27 June 2016 announced plans to raise gross proceeds of approximately £65.0 million by way of a Firm
Placing and Placing and Open Offer on the basis of 1 new ordinary share for every 3 axisting ordinary shares (the Capital
Raising). The Caplital Raising was completed on 18 July 2016.

In conjunction with the Capital Raising the Group reached agresment with its lenders for revised banking facllities to support the
Group’s future development. This agroeement Included a walver of potential covenant breaches In respect of the quarter ended
30 June 2016, and the provision of additional short-term facilities which were subsequently repaid from some of the proceeds of
the Capital Raising.

Subsequent to the Capital Raising, the trading challenges described above necessitated further discussions with the Group's
lenders in Novembaer 20H6. These culminated in agreement to defer debt payments due in the following 12 months and for
management to expicre strategic options to reduce the Group’s leverage. The Board were already in discussions with Hytera
concerning the Acquisition, pursuant to which the Group's syndicated borrowings were repaid upon completion.

Impact of reduced profitabllity on the carrying value of non-current assets

As a result of the decision to withdraw from the DMR market, and the reduced forecast profitability of the Group in the light of
the challenging trading during the 2017 financial year, the Group recorded impairments totaling €92.0 milllon agalnst the
camrying vaiue of non-current assets in accordance with IAS36 “impairment of Assets”.

Research and development

The Group continwed to invest in research and development, with a focus on maintaining product leadership. The most
significant individual project remalns the Group’s next generation platform of both terminals and Infrastructure, which culminated
in the launch of the SC20 TETRA temminal in May 2016.

Gross expenditure on research and development decreased by 17% to €18.2 million (2016: €21.8 million), and represented 17%
of revenues (2016: 11%). The reduction in the absolute level of expenditure reflects the synergies realised following the
acquisition of Tettronic SAU in May 2015.

Operating (loas) profit

The Group presents adjusted Eamings Before Intarest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation ("EBITDA”) and adjusted operating
(loss) profit as key performance measures In addition to the operating profit reported under IFRS. The Group considers that the
exclusion of cartain non-recurring or non-cash items provides an alternative measure of the underlying trading performance of
the Group.

Adjusted EBITDA and ad|usted operating loss were €{14.3) million and €(18.6) million {2016: adjusted EBITDA of €18.5 million
adjusted operating profit of €12.4 million) respectively, reflecting the chalienging trading described above.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Non-recurring ltems
The Group has incurred a number of non-recuning items in the current period, totaling €108.7 million (2018: €26.6 million) and

comprising:

’ €82.0 million of impaiments against the carrying value of noh-current assats, as dascribed above

> €0.7 million of impairment agalinst the carrying value of Inventories;

» €9.9 million of costs, primarily profossional fees, in connection with the Capltal Raising as described above;

» €4.1 million of restructuring costs incurrad during the period as a result of the changes to the Group's businass model,;

by €2 .4 million in relation to the revised facilities put in place during the period, including the amangement fee and write off
of debt issue costs for the facilities that were the subject of these revisions;

: €0.4 million credit for the net release of contingent conslderation payable for the pravious acquisiions of Fyide Micro
Limited and Portalify Oy.

Non-recurring ltems in the prior period related to costs incumed in connaction with the acquisition of Teltronic (€6.6 milifon),
restructuring cests relating to the combined Group (€11.1 million}, costs incurred in assoclation with the Finm Placing, Placing
and Open Offer (€1.5 million), non-cash impaimment costs against the Group's Investment in the DMR market (€9.4 million),
write off of debt issue costs for facilities replaced in the period (€0.3 milllon), provision against outstanding receivables from a
customer in Greece {(€0.3 miliion) and a credit for the net release of contingent considaration of €2.6 miilion.

Cash fiows and financing

Net debt at the end of the period was reduced from €115.5 million to €33.0 million, refiscting the proceeds of the Capital
Raising, the trading performance of the Group during the parod and the following significant non-operating cash flows:
b €1.8 milllon paid for acquisitions (2016: €122.0 million, primarily in relation to the acquisition of Teltronic SAU);

; €86.5 miltion spent on capitalised development costs (2018: €18.4 million),

’ €2.2 milllon of other capital expenditure (2018: €12.0 million, including €6 million In relation to the Group's new
headquarters near Cambridge); and

) €6.4 million of interest and arrangement fees payable in respect of the Group's banking facilities (2016: €5.2 million).
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Strategic Report {continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk and impact

Management strategy

Technological change

The Group's revenue and profitability are affected by the
extent to which there is increasing demand for, and
development by our competitors of, addiional products and
product features. For axample, the adoption of 4G/ LTE™ for
the delivery of broad-band data services to consumers has led
some Public Safety agencies, including those in the UK, to
explore the possibllity of creating equivalent data networks,
using either planned commercial networks or constructing
their own 4G privale networks. Significant investments are
made In new product development, and there can be no
guarantee that the Group will be able o generate sufficient
revenue to offset these development costs or to continue to
make such Investments. There are aiso associated risks
relating to difficuliies and delays in the development process
of new products, and their acceptance by customers. if
competitors successiully launch new products or features
which the Group is unabie to match then it could lose market
share with a corresponding impact on future profitabllity and
the Group's financial position.

Product Innovation

While the existing 4G standard does not contaln the protocols
necessary for voice traffic, or the call prioritisation and similar
functions required by Public Safety agencies, the Group Is
Investing in new product development to poslition the Group
for the likely future deployment of LTE and the recently
launched "Next Generation® SC20 products Incorporate a high
speed data bearer making it the first TETRA hand-portable
which can claim to be LTE data ready. This Is part of an
ongoing programme of identifying customer needs, and
potantial competitor advances, to ensura that the Group
malntains a portfolio of market leading producte. Development
efforts are focused on faatures which meet a market
requirement and are likely to generate sufficient revenue to
fund their devalopment.

Rellance on key markets or customers

A significant percentage of revenue in each financlal year is
currently dertved from a small number of end-user
organisations, the majority of which are govememental
organisations, In several key gecgraphies,

The timing of orders from these customers Is inflizenced by a
number of factors, including governmental investment
decisions which may be affected by changes in political and
economic conditions. This makes accurate predictions of the
timing of future revenues more difficult. In the event that there
is a delay (o either the fendering process or the placing of
orders following a successful bid, then revenues may not be
generated within the originally forecast timeframe, with a
consaquential Impact on the profitability of the Group In any
given parlod.

Growing our addressable market

The Group's previous focus on diversification has resulted in a
reducing significance of individual contracts or customers
relative to the Group's total operations. The Group continues
to enter new markets which will provide further diversification.
Furthermore, the increasing role of regular add-on and
replacement business aleo helps to mitigate the Impact of
significant delays in sacuring new customers.

Creadit risk

Reliance on key markets or customers may also result in
credit risk being concentrated within a small group of
customers and default by a material customer could have a
material impact on the Group’s resuits. Following the giobai
expansion of the Group’s activities it now operates in countries
and with customets that may give rise to higher credit risk
exposure than that to which it has previously besn expasad.

Working with the right pariners

The Board has implemented policies that reguire appropriate
credit checks on potentlal customers and customer orders are
checked against pre-set requirements before acceptance,
Formal credit controf procedures are applied subsequent to
invoicing customars, with letters of credit and payments in
advance obtained where appropriate. Such rigorous
procedures cannot completely mitigate cradit risk, and the
Group provides against significant overdue accounts where
recoverability of the debt is considered sufficlently uncertain.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the camying
vatue of trade and other recelvables.

Competition

There is strong campetifion in the markets in which the Group
operates, particulany in relation to govemment procurement
tendering procasses which rely on a combination of technical
performance and price. A significant reduction in the pricas
achieved for the Group’s products could have a material
impact on the Group's margins and profitability.

Investing in product leadership

The Group's abillty to compete depends on its high-quality
product range and its reputation for customer service as well
as the ongoing programme of work to reduce product costs.
The Board regularly reviews the level of investment in these
areas in the light of changes in the competitive landscape, to
ensure that the Group can continue to compete effectively.
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Risk and impact

Management strategy

Managing working capital

A specific consequence of trading in a difficult financial
situation is the need to manage carefully the working capital of
the business through controlling inventory Jevels and ensuring
that customers adhere to credit terms. If these procedures do
not result in warking capltal converting Into cash on & timely
basis, the Group might need to secure additional funding to
meet its short-term cash requirements.

Securing adequate financing

The Board undertook the Capital Raise in FY17 fo strengihen
the Group's balance sheet and, in conjunction with the
Group's banking facilities, provide additional working capital
for the Group as it progressed through the year. Pursuant to
the Acquisition, the Company has repald its syndicated
banking facilities and received confirnation of ongoing
financial support from its ultimate parent undertaking. The
Board also established and maintains regular reviews of the
QGroup's cash position and forecast cashflows to ensure
adequate headroom is In place for the Group's operational
requirements.

Forsign currancy

The Greup has an international customer base and purchases
products and services in a range of currencles. The reported
revenues, costs, assets and liabilities of the Group are
therefore affectad by fluctuations in prevalling rates of
exchange between these cumrencies. This affects comparisons
of current year reguits to previous periods, where equivalent
underlying transactions are reported at differing rates, and
may affect future results if assets and liabliities are subject to
revaluation over time.

Information security

The Group regards Information within the business as a key
asset and recognises the risk and impact on the business of
breaches to the integrity of information relating to the
business.

Supply chaln risk and product recatl

The Group s depandent on outsourced electronic
manufacturing companies for the manufacture of substantially
all of our current products and on a small number of suppliers
for key components. Any failure or inability of these
companies to supply the Group could adversely affect its
business. The Group's supply chaln Is complax, and the use
of third-party suppliers and service providers could adverssly
affect product quality, delivery schedules or customer
satisfaction. Any of these could have an adverse effect on the
Group's financial resulls.

Effective hadging of exchange rate sxposures

The Company’s presentational and functional currency is the
Euro, reflecting the relative contribution of Euro-denominated
ravenues, The Board has Implementad policles that require
regular reviews of the Group's forecast currency requirements,
In conjunction with a rolling programme of manthly forward
contracts to hedge forecast net cash flows In major currencles.
Where these hedges are deemed to be effective any
unreslised galns or losses on the hedges are recognised in
equity rather than In the consolidated income statement, again
reducing possible volatllity in reported eamings arising from
changes In exchanga rates. Furthermors, following the
acquisition of Teltronic the Group’s GBP revenues and costs
are falling as a proportion of the Group's overall activities
while incrgasing USD revenues from the North Amarican
market provide a natural hedge against USD product costs.

" Effective protection of information security and integrity

The Group has In place systems and processes for the
classification and control of access fo inforrnation within a
number of elements of the business. The information sacurity
standard |SQ27000 is a reference frame for al! information
sacurity management systoms and ls the framework against
which the Group manages Information security.

Monitor manufacturing and component supply chaln
The Group mitigatas supply chain risk by employing a number
of supplier monitoring mechanisms and control measures
which address business viabillty, production quality and
component obeolascence. Automated and manual product
testing is an Integral part of all projects and maenufacturing. In
addition, all third party products undergo conformance testing
and compliance checks.

I
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Board takes Corporate Social Responsibility seriously and Is committed to advancing related policies, systems and
initlatives across all areas of the business. Thesa areas primarily include ethical behaviour, concem for employee welfare,
health and safety, care for the environment and community involvement.

Considerable efforts are made to communicate effectively with all staksholders who may have an Interest in the Group’s CSR
activities, including our shareholders, customers, suppliers, partners and employees. The Company’s webslte is one of the main
routas for providing information to interested parties and providing us with constructive feedback.

Ethical behaviour

In support of the Group's cors values of integrity, excellence, care, teamwork and commitment, Sepura expects that its business
around the world is always conducted to high ethical standards of practice and legal principles. To that end, all employees and
business partners are also expected to demonstrate high standards of professionalism and Integrity at ell times when
conducting business on the Company’s behalf.

A Gode of Business Conduct and Ethics (including a whistie-blowing policy) covering the whole of the business and various
stakeholder interasts is In place and is regularly reviewed and relterated to staff and business partners.

Human rights

The Group respects all human rights and conducts its business In adherence to all relevant govemment guldelines, and takes all
pracical sleps to ensure that its products are not supplied to orgenisations that may use them fo advance terrorism, intemal
repression or otherwise abuse human rights,

Employsas

As a business driven largely by technical development and innovation, the Group's main assets lie in the talents and skills of the
paople it employs. Consequently, it aims o atiract, retaln and motivate the highest calibre of employees, both technical and non-
technical, by sncouraging and rewarding high performance through competitive remuneration and incentive arrangements.
Sepura continues to be an "investor In Pecple® accredited employsr.

Acknowiedging that an environment that fosters innovation and coflabcration is critical to the Group’s success, efforts are made
to Identify and provide further leaming, training and development opportunities for all employees. These are structured so as to
align organisational objectlves with personal career aspirations. Formal performance reviews, including 360° appraisals, are
conducted annually.

Similarly, the importance of two-way communication is recognised, particularty as it relates to the business and its performancs.
Employee involvement Is actively encouraged through a Staff Councll and the Group keeps employees regularly informed of the
Group's activities and performance through team briefings, direct access to managers and Directors at all levels and by periodic
presentations to all staff,

Equality and diversity

The split of staff by gender is shown below. Sepura is committed to providing equallty of opportunity to all existing and
prospective employges without unlawful or unfalr discrimination. In addition, the Board is supportive of the employment and
advancement of disablad persons. The Group gives full and fair conslderation to the applications for employment from disabled
persans, having regard to their paricular aptitudes and ablliies. Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued
employment and tralning, career development and promotion of disabled persons employed by the Group.

Male Female
Directors 8 -
Senior managers 42 3
Other employees 529 120

Health and safety
Tha Board is committed to protecting the health and safety of employees, and third parties who visit the Group’s sites, as well as
having a positive influence on the supply chaln throughout the world.

The Group s legally compliant and, where appropriate, works to exceed these requirements to provide safe warking
enviranmenis and a robust programme of occupational health management.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions
The total emissions and intenslty ratlos for the iast financial year, together with the year that formed the basefine ysar from
which progress will be tracked, are shown above.

2017 2016

Tonnes of Tonnes of

CcO: per Tonnes of CO; per
e Tonnes €1m of CO:2 per Tonnes of €1m of CO2 per
of CO2 revenue employee of CO: revenus employee
Scopa 1: Direct emissions 223 2.0 0.3 86 0.5 0.1
Scope 2: indirect emissions 1,437 13.0 241 1,280 6.7 1.5
Total Scope 1 and Scops 2 emigsions 1,660 15.0 2.4 1,386 7.2 1.6

Sepura is commiited to reporiing its total carbon smissions based on the Scope 1 and 2 Greenhouse gas emissions from across
the Group. A *financial control* approach has been adopted in conjunction with the “GHG Protacol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard {revised edition)” and emission factors from UK Govemment's "GHG Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting 2015" to determine the Group's fotal gresnhouse gas emissions, based on detalled metrics from each of the Group's
locations whare they are availabie. Data from several smalier offices, based in servicad premises, has been exciuded on the
grounds of materiality as the data is not available.

Three UK offices were closed between October 2015 and March 2016, while the acquisition of Teltronic Ih 2016 has had a
significant impact on the figures disclosad above as a result of s manufacturing facfiities.

Environmental care
A3 a worldwide company, Sepura understands the importance of its role in minimising the environmental impact of its
operations, providing resources to support thase principles and associated environmeantal initiatives.

An Environmental Management System (1S014001) enables management to focus on areas where the Group's impact can be
positively managed or influencad. Targets are set, against which management are measured, driving continuous improvement
In resource conservation and the prevention of pollution throughout the iifecycle of the Group’s products. Particular focus is
placed on conserving resources through better energy efficiency, reduction of travel emlssions and recycling:

> Promoting sustainable design principles in the deveiopment of new products and packaging;

) Fastering a positive culture amongst employees, customers and the Group's supply chain by the development and
communication of clear policies, and the promotion of good practice;

b Minimlsing the Group’s impact on the communities in which it operates through engagement with local organisations and
raising employee awareness; and

» Using Environmental Management Systems to provide a framework for setting, evaluating and reporting environmental
performance.
K

ISR

Richard Smith
Chief Financial Officer
28 Seplember 2017
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Statement

This report, which has been prepared on behalf of the Board for the financial year ended 31 March 2017, sets out the
remuneration policy for the Directors of the Company in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017. In accordance with the
shareholder voting and disclosurs requirerments published by the Department for Business, Innovation and Skilis in June 2013,
this report has besen divided into three sections:

? This Annual Statemant, which demonstrates how performance has linked to reward and summarises the decisions made
by the Remuneration Commitiee in the year;

H The Ramuﬁ'emtion Policy Report, which sets out the Group's policy on the remuneration of Executive and Non-Executiva
Diractors which, following shareholder approval, bacame effective from the 2014 AGM; and

y The Annual Report on Remuneration, which discloses details of the Remuneration Committee, how the remuneration
policy will operate for the period ending 31 March 2018 ("FY18") and how the policy was implemented in the period
ended 31 March 2017 ("FY17).

Remuneration pollcy and reward for FY17

As reported last year, In light of the fall In the Company’'s share price Gordon Watling requested that he be paid a reduced
salary of £350,000 for the foresesable future. This reduction also applied to the calculation of his pension, bonus and LTIP
grants and will remain in place until It is determined that it would be appropriate to revert to his contractital salary level, which
may be done in stages.

On 12 September 2016 Gordon Watling notified the Board that he had received medical advice to take an immediate and
extended period of absence, In order to recover fully from injuries sustained In an accident earlier in the year. Subsequent salary
payments to Gordon Watling by the Group refiact the terms of the Group's healthcare Insurancs.

No payments have been made or are due to any Directors under the terms of the FY 17 Short-Term Incentive Plan ("STIP").

The Group's FY16 results in respect of adjusted EBITDA formed the basis for one third of the FY14 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(“L.TIP") granted in July 2013, which vested during FY17. The minimum adjusted EBITDA target was met, resulting in vesting of
10% of the maximum for this part of the award. Gordon Watling surrendered his entitlement in respect of his award.

On 5 August 2016 grants were made to the Executive Directors under the Group's LTIP arrangements, with associated
performance targets as set out in last year's Annual Statement. All of these awards lapsed upon the Acquisition of the Group.

Richard Smith
Chief Financial Officer
28 September 2017

Remuneration Policy Report

The remuneration policy for the Group, as detailed in the Group's FY16 Annual Report, became fonmally effective from the
Company's 2014 AGM, and was in place from that date until the Acquisltion of the Group and its subsequent delisting in May
2017.

Following the Acquisition the Group's policy an the remuneration of individual Directors will be determined by reference to the
operational requirements of the new ultimate controlling party.

8 ’ Sepura Plc
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Base aalary

The base salary for each Executive Diractor was determined by the Remuneration Commiittee taking into account the role,
responsibllities, performance and experienca of the Individual, When setiing thess base salary levels the Remuneration
Committes took into account the performance of the individual, the Company’s particular circumstances and market data on
salary levels for stmilar positions in comparable companies.

The base salary level for the Chief Executive Officer was reduced to £350,000 as noted in the Annual Statement above. The
base salary level for the Chief Financial officer was Increased by 5% from £300,000 to £315,000 with effect from 1 July 2018.

Banefits in kind and pension
Non-pension benefits comprised Iife assurance and private medical insurance cover.

Exacutive Directors will continue to be eligible to participate in a defined contribution group personal pension plan into which the
Company contributes on bshalf of participating individuals. Alternatively, an equivalent salary supplement may ba provided. The
pension contributions for Gordon Watling and Richard Smith for the coming year are currently anticipated to remain at 10% of
salary. None of the Executive Diractors has any entitiement to participate in a defined benefits pension scheme.

Conslderation by the Directors of mattars relating to Directors’ remuneration

All decisions with regard to the remuneration of the Executive Directors were taken by the Remuneration Committea, This
committea comptised Nigel Smith (Chairman) and Gordon Stuart. The Committee was advised by ils own remuneration advisor,
New Bridge Street (part of Aon pic), who had the requisite experience, resources and independence fo advise the committee.
New Bridge Street is a signatory to the Remunaration Consultants’ Group Code of Conduct for UK Remuneration Advisors and
had no other relationship with the Company or its Executive Directors. New Bridge Street’s fees for the year totaled €27,000
{2016: €39,000) for services principally refating fo advice on the Company’s share schemes and exacutive remuneration,

4] Sepura Plc
2017 Annual report and accounts



Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)

Tables for Annual Report on Remuneration

The foflowing Information Is audited

Total remuneration received by Directors

The table below sets out the individual remuneration of the Directors who served during the period ended 31 March 2017,
together with equivalent sums recelved In the prior year.

. Salary and Taxable Annual Long-term

£000 foos benefits bonus Incentives Pension Total
Exscutive Directors

David Barrass'

2017 176 - - - - 176
2016 - - - - — -
Gordon Watling®

2017 as3 1 - - 32 416
2016 398 - - 665 42 1,106
Richard Smith®

2017 311 1 - - 31 343
2016 75 - 75 - 8 158
Non-Executive Directors

Alan Loveil’

2017 a8 - - - - 88
2016 - - - - - -
Andrew Leeser"

2017 14 - - - - 14
2016 - - - - — -
Sion Kearsey

2017 40 - - - - 40
2016 40 - - - - 40
Gordon Stuart

2017 45 - - - - 45
2016 45 - - - - 45
Nigel Smith

2017 45 - - - - 45
2018 45 - - - - 45
Formner Directors

Russell King®

2017 78 - - - - 78
2016 100 - - - - 100
John Hughes®

2017 — - - - - -
2016 60 - - - - 60
Steve Chamberlain®

2017 - - - - - -
2018 143 - - 392 14 549

1 Appointed on 24 October 2016

2 On axtended leave of absance from 12 September 2016

3 Appointed on 4 January 2018

4 Appointed on 21 November 2018

& Appolnted Chairman on 7 September 2015 and resignad from the Board on 24 October 2016

6 John Hughes and Steve Chamberlain retired an 7 Saptember 2015 and 4 January 2016 respectivety
10 Sepura Fic
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Annual Report on Remuneration {continued)

Annual bonus for FY17
No annual bonuses were awarded to Exacutive Directors in respect of FY17,

LTIP performance
Mr Watling surrenderad his entitlement in respect of the LTIP awanrd granted on 31 July 2013 which would otherwise hava
vested during the year.

Share awards granted in the year
The following share awards were granted to Directors during FY17:

Share price % of face value
Face value used o that would vest Vasting
Basis of award of award detemmine Number of at threshold determined by
Typa of award granted (£'000) awards shares granted performance performance over
Gordon Watling LTIP  100% of salary 350 £0.57 615,855 10% 3 years
Richard Smith LTIP  120% of salary 378 £0.57 664,907 10% 3years

Outstanding LTIP Awards
Dataits of LTIP awards granted to Directors outstanding at the end of the period are set out below. Afl of these lapsed following
the Acquisition.

No. of

sharesat1 Granted Surrendered  Lapsed No. of shares End of
Exerclse April during the  during the duringthe at 31 March performance Exercles
Director Scheme Grant date price 2018 year year year 2017 period  period
Gorden FY14 - 10 June 2013 - 268282 - (14,007) (254,275} - 31 .July2016 -
Watling FY15 17 June 2014 - 624782 - - - 624,782 50% 16.June -

2017

50% 16 June

2018
FY18 13 August 2015 - 316,608 - - - 316,608 12 August 2018 -
Fy17 5 August 2018 - - B15,655 - - 615,855 5 August 2018 -
Richard FY16 4 January 2016 - 196,900 - - - 196,980 12 August 2018 -
Smith FY17 5 August 2016 - - 664,807 - - 664,807 &S August 2019 -

Performance targets are disclosed above or, in respect of sarlier awards, in prior Remuneration Reports.
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Annuai Report on Remuneration (continued)

Directors’ interesis

Diractors' interests in the shares of the Company at the end of the period and the date of this report were as follows:

Beneficially

Beneficially owned at

owned at 31 the date of

Director March 2017 this report
David Bamrass - -
Gordon Watling 609,224' -
Richard Smith - -
Alan Lovell - -
Andrew Loeser - -
Sion Kearsey 10,433,657 -
Gordon Stuart 21,333 -
_Nigel Smith 28,444 -

1 Included i Mr Watling's holding are 266,820 shares held by his wife

Save es disclosed, none of the Directors nor any person connected with a Director has any Interest in the shares or loan capital

of the company or any subsidiary understandings.
The following information is unaudited

Performance Graph and CEQ Remuneration

The following chart presents the Company’s TSR over the past eight years compared to the FTSE SmallCap index excluding

investment trusts.
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The CEQ's total remuneration over the same period has been as follows:

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FYi4 FY15 FY16 FY17
Total remuneration (£°000s) 257 245 320 559 533 1,242 1,105 416"
Annual bonus (%) 5% 0% 0% 8% T1% 20% 0% 0%
LTIP vesting (%) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 67% 70% 0%

1 MrWatling has basn on an extended leave of absence since 12 Septamber 2016

Changes in CEO remuneration

The CEO receivad an Increase In salary during FY'18, although he subsequently requested a reduced salary In light of the fall in

the Company's share price as described above. This compares to other employees as follows:

% change
Chlef Executive Salary’ -4%
Benasfits 21%
L Bonus -
All employess (averaged) Salary +14%
Benefits +2%
Bonus -
1 Based on actual remuneraticn received for the financial year; Mr Watling has bean on an gxtended laave of absence since 12 September 2016
12 Sepura Pic

2017 Annual report and accounts



Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)

Relative importance of spend on pay

Overall staff costs decreased by 4% during FY17, refiecting the impact of weakaer Sterling (the currency in which the majority of
the Group's payroll cost is incurred) together with lower headcount as a result of the restructuring undertaken during the prior
and current periods. This dacrease in overall staff costs can be seen In the context of the change in other relovant metrics as

shown below;

FY17 FY16

€m €m % change
Staff costs 498 51.8 4%
Revenue 110.2 189.7 -42%
Gross profit 43.8 70.8 -38%
R&D sxpenditures 18.2 218 -17%
Agjusted operaling (loss) profit (18.6) 12.4 -250%
Dividends and share repurchases - 8.8 -100%

Shareholder voting

Shareholders voted overwhelmingly at the 2014 AGM in favour of adapting both the Company’s Remuneration Policy, and at the
2016 AGM in favour of adopting the Annual Statement and Annual Report on Remuneration in respect of the year ended 1 Apri

2016:

Remuneration Policy

FY18 Annual Statement and
Annual Report on Remuneration

Percentage Percentage

Votes of votes Votes of votes

Voles cast in favour 110,528,646 99.97% 210,247,817 94.92%

Votes cast against 38,298 0.03% 11,259,304 5.08%

Total votes cast 110,566,945 100% 221,507,121 100%

Vaotes withheld 2,000 - - -
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited financlal statements for the period ended 31 March 2017,

Strategic Report

The Strategic Report on pages 1 to 7 sets out a fair and balanced review of the Group's performance during the period and of its
position at the period end, including commentary on its likely future development and prospects, while information on principal
risks and uncertainties Is given on pagses 4 and 5. Such information should be read in conjunction with this Report. The
Directors’ Remuneration Report details the romuneration arrangements. The Group's approach 1o business ethics, emnployee
weifare and practice, health and safefy, environmental and community matters is summarised on pages 6 and 7. All these
sections form part of this Directors’ Report into which they are incorporated by reference.

Results and dividends
The audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the perlod under review are set out on pages 19 to 54

and pages 57 to 65 respectively.
No dividends have been paid or are proposed In respect of the period under raview,

Research and development

Product development and innovation, principally, but not solely, related to TETRA technology and products, remain key
strategles for maintaining and improving the Group's compaetitive position and therefore they continue to be strong priorities. The
key objectives are new product development, improved functionality and extended application, all designed to enhance benefits
for the end-user. Expenses incurred are capitalisad when it is probabie that future economic benefits will be attributable to the
asset and that these costs can be measured reliably.

The Group's commitment to this vital area is highlighted by the €18.2 million of davelopment spend during the period,
reprosenting 17% of sales (2016: €21.8 million and 11% of sales). The Group will continue to commit a significant amount of
resource and expenditure, as appropriate, to research and development.

Financlal Instruments
Details of the Group's objectives and policies on financial risk management, and of the financial instruments currently in uss,

can be found In Ni:te 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Employment of disabled parsons
The Group's policy regarding the hiring, continuing employment and training, career development and promoticn of disabled

persons is set out on page 6.

Employee consultation
Details of employes consultation are set out on page 6,

Share capital
The Company has a single class of share which is divided into Ordinary shares of £0.0005 each with ail of the Ordinary shares

ranking par passu. Further information regarding the Company’s share capital is set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financlal
staternents.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Board of Direciois
The Directors of the Company who served throughout the period and up to the date of signing of this Annual Report (except

whare noted) were:

Gordon Watling (On extended leave of absence since 12 September 2016)
Rlichard Smith

Steve Barber (Appointed 11 September 2017)

Duncan Crouch (Appointed 11 September 2017)

Alan Lovelt {Appointed on 24 Oclober 2046 and resigned on 24 May 2017)
David Barrass (Appointed on 24 October 2016 and resigned on 24 May 2017)
Andrew Leeser (Appointed on 21 November 2018 and resigned on 24 May 2017)
Russell King (Reslgned on 24 October 2016)

Sion Kearsey {Resigned on 24 May 2017}

Nigel Smith {Resigned on 24 May 2017)

Gordon Stuart (Resigned on 24 May 2017)

Directors’ Indemnity arrangements
The Company has purchasad and maintained throughout the period to the date of this Report, and intends to do so going
forward, Directors’ and Officers’ liabllity Insurance in respect of itself and its Directors.

Political donations

At the 2016 AGM, sharehokiers gave autharily (covering the period up to the conclusion of the 2017 AGM or 27 Saptember
2017, whichever is earlier) for the Company to make political donaftions and incur political expenditure up to 8 maximum
aggregate sum of £100,000 as a precautionary measure in light of the wide definitions contained in the Polltical Parties
Electiors and Referendurns Act 2000. No payments wers made during the period or the prior period.

Gresnhouses gas emissions
Disclosuras in respect of greenhouse gas emissions are given on page 7.

Employea share incantive plans

The Company had in place for its Executive Directors and employees the Sepura 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP") under
which awards wers granted during the period. Detalls of this share plan can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Nota 26 to the consolidated financlal statemants.

The Company also had In place a Savings-Relatad Share Option Scheme (based on HMRC Guidelines) ("Sharesave Schemse").
This incentive plan, which encouraged share ownership amongst Sepura employees, was launched in September 2008,

Related party transactions
There wers no related party transactions with Directors, during efther the current or previous perlod, other than:

H their remuneration;

> £155,000 of fees were charged by Corporate Devetopment Partnership Limlied during the period in respect of services
provided by Andrew Leeser following his appoiniment as a Director, of which £14,000 was outstanding at the end of the
year; and

) €6,000 of fees paid in the prior pariod to a subsidiary of TMF Group, of which Gordon Stuart is 8 Dlractor, In retation to
the incorporation of a Spanish holding company.

Going concemn

After making due endquiry, and having considered the Group's budget for the coming year and a letter aof support from the
Group's parent undertaking, the Directors are satisfied that, at the time of approving the financial statements, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concemn basis in preparing the financial statements of both the Group and the Company.

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the Directors of the Company at the time when this Report was appraved confirmed that:

H 8o far as the Director is aware, there Is no relevant audit Information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

H he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himsslf aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of thal information.

This confimation is given in accordance with section 418(2) of the Act.
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Directors’ Report {continued)

Statemant of Directora’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accondance with applicable taw
and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financlal year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the Group financial statements [n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adoptad by
the European Unlon and parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and
applicable faw). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they
give a true and {air view of tha state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of the profit or loss of the Group and parent
company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

’ seleci suitable accounting policies and then apply tham consistently;

H state whether appiicable |FRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Group financial
statements and United Kingdom Accouating Standards, comprising FRS 101, have beep followed for the company
financial statements, subject o any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are raasonable and prudent; and

) prepare the firancial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
parent company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explaln the Group and
parert company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and parent
company and enable them to ensure that the financial stalements and the Directors' Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regands the Group financial statements, Articte 4 of the IAS Regulation

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and parent company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the pravention and detection of fraud and other imegularities

in the case of each Director in office at the dale the Directors' Report is approved:

’ 80 far as the Direcfor is awara, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and parent company’s auditors
are ynaware; and

? thay have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director In order to make themselves aware of any
relavant audit information and to establish that the Group and parent company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Overseas branches
The Company conducts some of Its overseas operations through branches in Malaysia, Argentina and Dubal.

Post balance sheet events
Details of Important events affecting the Company since 31 March 2017 are disclosed [n Note 34 to the consofidated financial

statements.
On behalf of the Board

a2

Richard Smith
Chief Financial Officer

8000 Cambridge Research Park
Beach Drive

Waterbeach -

Cambridge '

CB25 9TL

Registered in England No. 04353801
28 September 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Sepura plc

Report on the Group finranclal statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, Sepura ple's Group financial statements (the “financial statements®):

H give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affaire as at 31 March 2017 and of its loss and cash flows for the year
then ended;

) have been properly prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union; and

H have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

What we have audited
The financial statements, indluded within the Annual Report and Accountg (the "Annual Report’), comprisa:

» the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017;

b the Consolidated Incoma Statement and Consolidated Statemsnt of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;
) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended;

} the Consolidated Statement of Changss in Equity for the year then ended; and

’ the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere In the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial
statements. These ars cross-referenced from the financial statements and are Identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financlal statementis Is applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the Europaan Union.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the Directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in
respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future
events,

Opinlons on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2006

In our oplnion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

H the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financlal statements; and

H the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicabie legal requirements,

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and its environment obiained in the course of the audit, we
are required to report if we have identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report. We
have nothing to report In this respect.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of Information and expilanations recelved
Under the Companias Act 2008 we are required to report 1o you if, in our opinlon, we have nct received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required to report to you If, in our opinlon, certain disclosures of Directors’ remunearation
specifled by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibliity.

Responsibliities for the financial statements and the audit

Our rasponsibliities and those of the Directors
As oxplained more fully In the Statement of Directors’ Responsibiiities set oul on page 16, the Directors are responsibie for the
preparation of the financlal statements and for being satisfiad that they give a true and fair view,
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Sepura plc (continued)

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financlal statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) {"ISAs (UK & Ireland)”), Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinlons, has been prepared for and only for the parent company’s members as & body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume rasponsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shiown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agread by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financlal statements involves

We conducted our audit In accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtalning evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the financial staternents sufficlent to give reasonable assurance that the financial statoments are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

»  whether the accounting policles are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;

» the reasonableness of significant accounting astimates made by the Directors; and
y  the ovarall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our own
judgemants, and eveluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniguas, to the extant we consider necessary to provide
€ reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information In the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently matarially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent
matarial migstatements or inconslistencies we consider the implications for our report. With respect to the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report, we congider whether thase reports include the disclosures required by applicable legal requirements.

Other matter
We have reported saparately on the parent company financial statements of Sepura pic for the 52 week petiod ended 31 March
2017 and on the Information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that s described as having been audited.

b W ——

Matthew Mullins (Senfor Statutory Auditor)

far and on behalf £f PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Amourgants and Statutory

Auditors

Cambridgs

28 September 2017
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Consolidated income Statement

2017 2016
Bafore non- Non- Before non- Non-
recurfing recurrfnq recurring recurdn%
items Items Total ttems items Total
Note €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Revenue 6 110,168 - 110,168 189,723 - 189,723
Cost of sales (65,572) (761) (66,333) (112,885) {6.051) {118,836)
" Gross profit 44,506 (761) 43,835 76,838 (6.051) 70,787
Selling, marketing and
distribution costs (26,343) {808) (26,951) (28,320) {3,083) (31,403}
Research and development
costs (22,168) (,382) {31,550} {13,695) {10,520) {24,215)
Administrative expenses {32,072) (95,599) {127,871) {24,292) (8,716) (31,008)
Operating (loss) profit {35,987) (108,350) {142,337) 10,531 {26,370) (15,839)
Financial income 11 aré - 876 9438 - 948
Financial expense 12 (5,349) (2,387 (7,736 {3,911} (218)  {4,129)
Net financlal expense (4,673) (2,387} {7.080) (2,963) (218) {3,181)
" (Loss) profit before
Income tax 8 {40,660) (108,737) (149,397) 7.568 {26,588) {19,020)
Income tax {expense) credit 13 {7,992) 4,199 {3,783) 3,518 4,650 8,168
(Loss) profit for the
period attributable to
owners of the parent {48,652} {104,538) {153,180) 11,086 {21,938) (10,852)

: Non-recurring lems In the curment period are set out in Note 7 and relate to impairment provisions, the costs of the Capital Ralsing, the nat movement in

contingant conskiaration in relation to the acquisition of Fylda Micro Limited, the accateration of IFRS2 share oplion costs and restructuring costs.

Non-recurring iterns in the prior period relate to the acquisition of Taitronic SAU and aubsaquent restructuring of the Group, costs associsted with the equity raise,
the net movemsnt in contingent consideration in netation io the acquisttions of Portalify OY and Fykde Micro Limited, impairments relating to the DMR business,
costs associated with the 2016 equity raise, and a provision against outstanding receivables dus from a customer in Greace.

The accompanying notes are an Iintegrat part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017 2016
€’000 €000
Loss for the period {153,190) (10,852)
Other comprehensive income (expense):
Exchange translation™ 726 {533)
Cash flow hedges — gross 1,008 (4,549)
Cash flow hedges - taxation (319) 714
Cash flow hedges, net of taxation* 1,588 {3,835)
Other comprshensive income {expense) 2,315 (4,368)
Total comprehensive expense for the period attributable to owners of the parent {150,875} {15,220)
* These ilems may be reclassified to the Income Statement if certaln conditions ars met
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Retained
Ordinary eamings
share Share Other {Accumulated Total
capital premium reserves losses) equity
Note €000 €'000 €000 €000 €000
At 28 March 20156 79 999 (206} 83,750 84,622
Loss for the period - - - (10,852) (10,852)
Other comprehensive expense
for the period - - (533) {3,835) (4,368)
Total comprehensive expense - - (533) (14,687) {15,220)
Transactions with owners
Tax on share oplion schemes 17 - - - (696) {696)
Employee share option schemes:
value of employee services 26 - - - 2,840 2,840
Equity dividends pald 14 - - - (6,384) (6,384)
Issue of shares, net of expenses 25 31 77,423 - - 77,454
Treasury shares — purchase of own shares 25 - - - (56,463) {5,463}
Treasury shares — issue of shares to settle
employee share opfions 25 - - - 703 703
Total transactions with owners 31 77,423 - {9,000) 66,454
At 1 April 2016 110 78,422 {739) 60,063 137,856
Loss for the period - - - (153,190) {153,190)
Other comprehensive
income for the period - - 726 1,589 2,315
Total comprehensive income (expenss) - - 726 (151,601) (150,875)
Transactions with owners .
Tax on share option schemes 17 - - - (2.993) {2,993)
Employee share option schemes:
value of employee services 26 - - - 2,733 2,733
Issue of shares, net of expenses 25 113 73,634 - - 73,747
Treasury shares — issue of shares to settle
employee share options 25 - - — 1 1
Total fransactions with owners 113 73,634 - (259) 73,488
At 31 March 2017 223 152,056 {13) {01,797) 60,469
Other reserves compHtses cumulative exchange translations,
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Of Sepura Plc, Company number 04353801

31 March 1 April
2017 2016
Note €000 €'000
Assets
Non-cument assets
Intangible assets 15 79,172 177,438
Property, plant and equipment 16 16,956 23,318
Defarred tax asset 17 6,115 10,913
Total non-current assets 102,243 211,667
Current assets
Inventories - 18 24,050 26,784
Trade and other receivables 19 71,205 84,252
Restricted cash 20 - 3,825
Cash and cash equivalents 21 4,180 2,254
Total current assets 99,435 117,215
Total assets 201,678 328,882
Liabllitles
Current llabliltles
Borrowings 22 (87,835) (74,927
Derivative financial instruments 30 {238) {2,309)
Trade and cther payables 23 (34,483) {49,249)
income tax payable (2,218) {2.416)
Provisions 24 (3,825 (6,492)
Tota! current llabllities {128,599 (135,383)
Non-current Habllities
Bommowings 22 {9,331) (46,759)
Derivative financlal insttuments 30 (107} -
Trade and other payabies 23 {2,075) (7,509}
Provisions 24 (1,007 (1,365)
Total non-current llabilities {12,610 (55,633}
Total liabilities (141,200 (191,026}
Net assets 80,469 137,856
Equity
Ordinary share capital 25 223 110
Shara premium 25 152,056 78,422
Other reserves (13) (739}
{Accumulated losses) retained eamings (84,797) 60,063
Total equity 60,489 137,856

The financial statements on pages 19 to 54 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 28 September 2017 and
are signed on its péshalf by:

Q100

Richard Smith
Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesa consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2017 2016
Note €000 €'0060
Cash used in operations 27 (27,660) {13,861)
Income taxes paid (2,514) (571)
Net cash used in operating activities (29,174) {14,432)
Cash fiow from Iinvesting activities
Interest received G6 62
Purchase of propetty, plant and squipment {1,482) (11,480)
Capitalised development costs (6,518) {16,367)
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings, net of cash acquired (1,782)  {121,989)
Purchase of other intangible assets {673) (508}
Net cash used In Investing activities {10,388)  ({150,282)
Cash flow from financing actlvitles
New borrowings 25,611 118,472
Repayment of bormowings {51,454) (16,000)
Interest pald {5,222) (3,610)
Arrangement fea (1,191} (1,620)
Dividends paid fo sharehclders - (6,384)
Issue of shares, net of fees of €4,349,000 (2018: €5,173,000) 73,747 77,454
Purchase of own sharaes for Treasury - {5,463)
Issue of share capital from Treasury 1 703
Net cash generatad from financing activities 41,492 164,552
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28 1,929 (162)
Cash and cash aquivalents at the beginning of the perlod 2,254 2,401
Foreign exchange (3) 15
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 21 4,180 2,254
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
For the pericd ended 31 March 2017

1. Incorporation

Sepura plc (the Company”) Ia a public fimited company limited by shares Incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales with
registered number 04353801. The Company's registered office is 9000 Cambridge Research Park, Beach Drive, Waterbeach,
Cambridge, CB25 9TL. Detalls of the Company's subsidiary undertakings are set out in Note 5 to the Company’s financial
statements. The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are collectively referred to below as “the Group”.

2. The business of the Group
The principal activity of the Group is the design, development and distribution of secure digltal radio products and systems.

3. Easis of preparation

These cansolkdated financial statements have been prapared in accordance with Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards
("iIFRSs") as adoptad by the European Union, the IFRS Interpretations Commiitee {(formerly the intemational Financial Reporting
Interpretations Cofnmittee (IFRIC")) interpretations and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS. The financial statements of the parent company, which have besn prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 (“FRS 101"} ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’, aré presanted separately following these consolidated
financlal statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basls and undar the historical cost basis, except
for certain financial instruments that have bean measured at fair value. The going concem basis is considerad appropriate
given the forecast improvement in the Group's trading performance and confirmation from the Group’s ultimate parent company
that it will provide sufficient financial support to ensure that the Group can mest its obligations as they fail due.

The Company has prepared these consolldated financial statements for the 52 week period from 2 April 2016 to 31 March 2017,
being the nearest Friday to the end of the peried. The comparative period shown is the 53 week period from 28 March 2015 to 1
April 2016.

These consolidated financial statements include the results of all of the Company’s subeldlary undertakings, which are listed in
Note 5 to the Company's financial statements. One of the Company’'s subsidiaries, Fyide Micro Limfted, has taken advantage of
the examption from an audit for the period ended 31 March 2017 avallable under s479A of the Companies Act 2006 as the
Company has glven a statutory guarantee of ali of the cutstanding liabllities of Fylde Micro Limited as at 31 March 2017.

4. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of these financial statements are set out bolow. These policles have
been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

New standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in the financial statemants
For the purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has applied all standands and
interpretations that are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 2 April 2018,

The following new standards and amendments to published standards have been adopted duHng the current period:

» Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycdle
¥ Amendment to IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment” and IAS 38, “Intangible assets”, on depreciation and amortisation
H Amendments to JAS 27 "Separate financial statements® on equity accounting

> Amendments to IFRS 10 "Consolidated financial statements® and |AS 28 "Investments In assodiates and joint ventures”
on applying the consolidation exemption

> Amendments o IAS 1 "Prasantation of financial statements” discliosure Inftiative

) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 on investment entities applying the consolidation exemnption

> Amendment fo 1AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” on the disclosure initiative

H Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and IAS 38 "Intangible Assets” on depraciation and amortization
> Amendments to IAS 27 "Separate Financial Statements™ on the equity method

H Amendments to [FRS 11 “Joint Arrangements™ on acquisition of an intersst in a joint operation

None of these have had an impact on the reported results of the Group.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not ye! effective

Ceriain new standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatory for the
Group”s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 Aprll 2017 or later periods, and which the Group has not adopted early:

> IFRS 17 “Insurance coniracts”

) Amendments to IFRS 4"insurance contracts® regarding implementation of IFRS 9 “Financlal instruments” (subiect to EU
endorsement)

H Amendment to IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” on general hedge accounting

> Annual Improvements 2014-2016 cycle (subject to EU) endorsement)

» Amendments to IAS 12 “Income taxes” on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

y Amendmerits t 1AS 7 “Statement of cash flows”

H Amendments to IFRS 15 *Revenue from contracts with customers” - Clarifications

> Amendments to IFRS 2 "Share based payments” - Classification and measurement {subject to EU endarsement)

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a materlat impact on the financial
statements of the Group In future periods, except that IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial
instruments, IFRS 15 may have an impact on revenue recognition and related disclosures, and IFRS 16 will result in additional
leased assets and liabilities being racognised in the balance sheet. Beyond the Information above, It is not practicable to provide
a reasohable estimate of the effect of IFRS 8, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 until the detailed review currently being performed has
been complated.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings. Subsidiary
undsrtakings are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed 1o, or
has rights to, variable returns from its invoivement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power
over the entity. Subsidiary undertakings are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unreallsed galns on transactions between Group companies are eliminated,
Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are considered an impairment Indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiary undertakings have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the palicies adopted by the Group.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisiticn method. The conslideration trangferred in &
business combination is measured at fair valua, which s calculated as tha sum of the acquisttion-date fair values of assats
transferred by the Group, llabilities incumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest Issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquires. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acqulsition date, tha identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at thelr fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

) deferred tax assetis or liabllities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively; and

b assets {or gisposal groups) that are classlfied as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-curment Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measurad in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill Is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests In
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any} over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If the net of the acquisition-date falr
values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds tha sum of the conskleration transfemed, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held Interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excaess is recognisad immediataly in profit or loss as a bargain purchass gain,

When the consfderation transfemred by the Group in a business combination includes an asset or llability resulting from a
contingant consideration arrangemaent, the contingent consideration is measured at s acquisition-date fair value and Included
as part of the consideration transferred In a business combination. Changes In fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospactively, with comespending adjustments against goodwill.
Measurement pericd adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement
period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent conslderation that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustiments depends on how the contingent consideration Is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and ts subsequent settliement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classifled as an asset or a liabiiity is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value with the
corresponding gain or ioss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously-held interests in the acquired entity ls remeasured
to its acquistion date fair vaiue and the rasulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previcusly been recognised In other comprehensive income are
reclassifisd to profit or ioss, whore such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the Initial accounting for a business combination Is incomplete by the and of the reporting period In which the combination
ocours, the Group-reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted duriny the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabiliies are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodawill
Goodwill s Initially recognised and measured as set out above.

Goaodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for Impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impainmant testing, goocdwill Is
allocated io each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to bensfit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impaimment annually, or more frequently when there Is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is lsss than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairrent loss Is allocated first to reduce the camylng amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impalment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Ol: disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included In the determination of the profit or loss on
dispasal.

Revenue

Revenue, which relates to both the shipment of products and supplying solutions as part of long-term contracts, is recognised to
the extont that It is probable that economic beneflts will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, The
following specific racognition criterla must also be met before revenue is recognised;

i. Sale of products

Revenye from the sale of products, such as the Group’s terminals, accessories and standard software products, Is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the products have passad to the buyer and revenue can be rallably
measured, Depending on the Incoterms applicable, the Group typlcally recognises such revenue from the sale of products on
despatch, on receipt of products by the customer, or upon formal acknowledgement from the customer that titie has passed but
they wish the products to be stored at the Group's premises, in which case revenue is ony recognised when the goods are on
hland. separately identified and available for collection, usual payment terms apply, and Hlt is probable that defivery will take
place.

in a multiple element arrangement some of the elements, either hardware or softwars, may remain undelivered or incomplete.
Revenue may be pcognlsed on the fair value of the alements delivered providing the following conditions are fulfilled:

b The eleme?lt of the product delivered has value to the customer on a stand-alone basis and is thus a separately
identiflable component within the arrangement;

y The fair value can ba reliably attributed to the undelivered elamant (in the event of bundilng where undelivered
components may not have a separate involcad sales price the falr value of the revenue deferred is caiculated by
comparing the underlying product list price of each element of the bundle compared to the overall bundle price); and

» Dellvery of the undelivered element is probable and under the control of the Group i.e. the technical risk attached to the
delivery of the component Is acceptable.

If any of these condilions are not met then all revenue under the arangement is defemred untll either the contract is complete or
uncertainty over any of these conditions s removed.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Rsvenue {continued)

IIl. Long-term contracts

The supply of solutions by the Group, such as network infrastructure or command and control software applications, where the
fmplementatlon takes place over a period of months or years, are accounted for as long-term contracts. Revenue and cost of
sales from long-lerm contracts are recognised on the percentage of completion basis based on costs incurred to date when the
outcome of the contract can be estimated reliably. The criteria for this are that total contract revenue and the costs to complete
the contract can be estimated rellably, It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the
Group and that the stage of contract completion can be measured. When the Group is not able to meet those conditions, the
policy Is to recognise revenue equal to costs incurred to date, to the extent that such costs are expected to be recovered.
Expected losses are recognised in full at the point at which they are anticipated. If the amount of the revenue recognised
exceads the amounts invoiced to customers, the excess amount is recorded In accrued income within trade and other
recefvables. If the amounts invoiced axceed the revanue recognised, the excess amount is recorded as defermed revenus.

lli. Warranties

As noted above, the Group assesses whether any of its contracts contain elements which operate Independently of other
contractual elements and which should, therefore, be 'unbundled’ and accounted for separately. The Group offers as standard
to all customers a product wamanty package, which is typically for a period of three to five years depending on the product and
territory concemned. Generally, product wamranty packages which are offered as standard with all products are not separately
priced, are offered for periods in line with the Group's standard terms of supply at the time of sale and are not considered to be
an element capable of ‘unbundling’. In such cases, provigion is made at the time of sale for the estimated cost of providing the
warranty cover based on historical information on the cost and frequency of repairs required to the Group's products. The Group
also has back-to-back warranties of between twelva and fifteen months with the majority of its sub-contract manufacturers to
limit risk on product warranties. Amounts due from manufacturers under back-1o-back warranties are not recognised until the
manufacturer has confirmed a reimbursement will be made.

In certain cases “enhanced” warmanty peckages, of a longer than standard period, are sold fo customers as ssparate products.
In such cases the fair value of the revenue assoclated with the warranty cover is amortised over the underlying period of the
warranty cover. The fair value of the rovenue Is determined by the Directors based on market information, including the sales
price when enhanced warranties are sold on a stand-alone basis.

Pensions

The Group provides access to a Stakeholder Penslon Scheme, a defined contribution plan into which employess may elect to
contribute via salary deduction. The Group makes contributions to the scheme in proportion o the amount contributed by the
employees. Costs are recoghised in the consolidated Income statemant in the period to which they relate.

Employee share schemes

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to iis eligible employees. Equity-seitied share-based payments are
measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-setiled share-based
payments is expensed in the consolidated income statement on & straightine basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest. The correaponding entry is recorded in retained eamings.
Falr value is measured using the trinomial modal. The expected life usad in the model has been adjusted, based on
management's best estimats, for the effecte of non-transferability, exercige restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Financial income
Financial income comprises interest receivable on cash balances and deposits and is recognised using the effective interest
rate method. Financlal income alsc includes the effect of unwinding of discounted trade receivablas.

Financial axpense
Financial expanse comprises Interest payable on credit facllities and is calculated using the effective irterest rate method In

accordance with IAS 38 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
Income fax '
Income tax on the result for the period comprises current and deferred tax. income tax Is recognised in the consolidated Income

statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax Is the expected tax payable on the taxable Income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance shest dats, in the countries in which the Group operates, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

periods.

Defarred tax Is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purpeses. The amount of
deferred tax provided Is based on the expected manner of realisation or setttemant of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheat date. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is revlewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longsr probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to alfow all or part of the assat to be racovered. Deferred tax assets and liabliitios are offset when there is
& legally enforceabie right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group infends to setfle its cumrent tax assets and liabilitfes on a net basis.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Dividends

Dividends deciared on the Company’s equity share capital are recognised as a liabllity when an irrevocable obligation to pay the
dividends is established. In the casa of interim dividends this arises when the dividend Is paid, while for final dividends this is the
date at which the dividends are approved at a shareholders’ general meesting.

Properly, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreclation and impairment losses. Historlcal cost .
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including, whers relevant, the cost of

subcontractors, direct labour and a proportion of aftributable overheads. Subsequent costs are inciuded in the asset’s canying

amount or recognised as e separate asset, as appropriate, only when it Is probable that future economic benefits assoclated

with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the lem can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are

charged to the consolldated income statement during the financlal period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less tha estimatad resldual value of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation for
certain manufacturing plant and machinery is calculated by referenca fo the number of units produced, and for all other assets
by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful economic lives as follows:

"

¥ Buildings 1 10— 33 yoars
] Plant and machinery 3 -7 years
» IT equipment 3-5years

No depreciation is charged on assets in the coursa of construction as their useful economic life has yet to commence. On
completion, the assete are transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment and depreciation Is charged at
the ebove rates.

intangiblo assets

The Group undertakes research and development activities with a view to developing new products and product functionality.
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new technical knowiedge and understanding, Is
recognised in the consolidated income statement when incurred.

Costs incumed on development projects (relating to the design and tasting of new or improved products) are recognised as
intangible assets anly if all of the following conditions hava been demonstrated:

’ it is technically feaslble that the project can be completed and will result in a product that is available for use or sale;

) It is Intended that the project will be completed and the assat will be used or sold;

> The resultant asset can ba used or sold;

y The resultent asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

’ There are sufficient technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and use or sell the asset; and
’ The expenditure eatfributable 1o the project can be measured reliably.

Devslopment expendituras that do not mest these critoria are recognised as an expense in the consolidated Income statement
as thay are Incurred. Deveiopment costs previously recognisad as an expense are not recognised as an asset In a subsaquent
period. The expenditure capitalised includes cost of materials, subcontractors, direct iabour and a proportion of ettributable
overheads. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortigsation is provided to wiite off the cost of the development expenditure by equal annual instaiments over the products’
estimated useful life, which is three years for developed devices and seven years for developed platforms, commencing from
the time the asset Is available for use. The amortisation of capialised development expenditure commences when the
development phagp is complete and the product is avalable for sale, and Is included In research and development costs in the
consolldated in e staternent.

Software and similar licences

Externally purchased software licances are capltalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. The Group also purchages licences to exploit third-party Intellectual proparty rights. Licences are recorded at the
historical cost to acquire the licence less accumulated amortisation and iImpairment loseas, and are amortisad on a straight-line
basls over the life of the licance or, where the licencs Is indefinite, their estimated useful Iife which is generally thres years. The
amortisation of software and similar licencss fs Included in the consolidated income statement within cost of sales cor resaarch
and development costs as appropriate.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Acquired intanglble assefs

At the date of acquisition of a subsidiary, intangible assets that are deemed saparable and that arise from contractual or other
legal rights are capitalised and included within the net identifiable assets acquired. Thess Intangible assets are initially
measured at fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost), which refiects market expectations of the
probabliity that the future economic benefits ambodied in the asset will flow to the entity, and are amortised on a straightdine
basis over their expected useful lives, which range from two to seventeen years. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and Impairment. At each balance sheet date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impalmment
and, in the avent that an asset's carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverablie amount, the asset is written
down immediately through the consolidated Income statement.

Impairment of tangible and irtangible assets excluding goodwill

The camrying value of non-current assets is reviewed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
vaiue may not be recoverable to detsrmine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such Iindication exista, the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Intangible assats inittially recognised during the curent annual perdod which are not yet
available for use are also tested for impairment by reference to the asset's recoverable amount at the balance sheet date.

An impalment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and capitalised software and other iicences is the greater of their falr value
less costs to sell and value in use. The recoverable amount of capitalised development costs is its value in use. In assassing
value In use, the estimated future cash flows ovar the remaining useful economic life of the asset in question are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rete that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

Inventories

Inventories including work In progress are siated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, being estimated sslling price in
the ordinary course of business less applicable variable selling costs. Cost is determined on a first in first out basis and includes
transport and handling costs. YWhere necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other shori-term highly liquid investmeants
with original maturities of three months or less.

Leasos

Leasses where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assst are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement on a siraight-line basla
over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are recefved to anter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduclion of rental expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
axcept where another systematic basis is more representative of the ime patterm In which economic benefits from the leased
asset areg consumed.

Government grants
Government grants are not recognised untll there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be recelved.

Covernment grants are recognised in profit or [ogs on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as
expensos the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acqulre non-current assets are recognised as deferred
revenus In the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systernatic and ratlonal basis
over the useful lives of the related assets. The benefit of UK research and development is recognised under the UK's Research
and Development Expenditure (‘RDEC") scheme and is of the nature of a government grant. Govemment grants which relate to
research and devglopment expenditure which has been capitalised during a period is netted off against the amount capitallsed,
and then released over the amortisation period of the related intangible asset.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rete of interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair vatue of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal ar constructive obligation as a result of a past event, itis
probabie that the Group will be required {o seftle that obligation and the amount can be estimated reliably. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settic the obligation at the balance shest date, and are discounted
to present value where the effect Ia material.

Share capital
Ordinary ghares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the Issue of new shares or oplions are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policles {continuad)

Non-recurring ffems

Itemns of income and oxpense that are considered material, either by their size and/or nature, are classified as exceptional/non-
recurring. Such items are shown separately on the face of the consolidated incorne statement. The categorisation of exceptional
items depends on the nature of the items arising.

Financial instruments

i, Treasury policies and management

The Group's treasury policies are designed to ensure that adequate financial resources are available for the development of the
Group's businesses.

ii. Trade recsivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently heki at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are assessed Individually for Impalirment and mavements In the
provision for doubtful debits are recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Where the Group enters in to a factoring agreement the trade receivables are derecognised when the agreement transfers the
trade receivables and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity, If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises-its retained interest in the asset and an associated ilability for amounts it may have fo pay. If the Group
retains substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred trade recaivable, the Group continues to recognise
the trade recelvatile and alsc recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds recelved.

iii. Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequentty held at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Trade payables are classified as current liabllitles unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

lv. Bormowings

Borrowings ara recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incumed. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceads {net of transaction costs} and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the bormowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are
classified as current llabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defsr sattiement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

When the Group exchanges with an existing lender one debt Instrument into another one with substantially different terms, such
exchange is accountad for as an extinguishment of the originai financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the
original financlal liabillty and the recognition of a new liability. It Is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present vaiue of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees pald net of any fees received and
discounted using the original effective rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present valua of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability.

v. Derivative financial Instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered into, and are subsequentty
remeasured at thelr fair value at each reporting date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether
the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates
cerlain derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (“fair value hedges”);

(b) hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liabillty or a highly probable forecast transaction ("cash
flow hedge"); or

{c) hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (‘net invesiment hedge™).
The Group docunjgnts at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging Instruments and hedged tems, as
well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents iis

assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basls, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effactive in offsetting changes In fair values or cash fiows of hedged ltems.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in Note 30.
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4, Summary of gignificant accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effactive portion of changes In the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehengive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
Income statemant within financlal income or financial expense. Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in
the periods when the hedged itern affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that ts hedged takes place). When a
hedging Instrument expires or is sold, or when a haedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative galn
or loss existing In equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction Is no longer expecied to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity Is Inmediately transferred to the income statement within financial income or financial expense. Changes in
the fair value of derlvative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as they arise.

Foreign currencies

I Functional and presentation currency

The presentation currency of the Group and the Company, and the functionat currency of the Company, is the Euro (€). The
functional currency of each Group entity is that of the primary economic environment in which it operates.

li. Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign cummencies have been transiated Inte the functional currency at the actual rates of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monstary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been
retranslated at ratps ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange gains and losses are taken to the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise.

iii. Group companies
The results and financial position of the Group's overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated, where appropriate, into Euros
as follows:

) Assets and liabllities at each balance sheet date presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
shest;

H Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and
H All resulfing exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policles, which are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and llabliities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considerad to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the pariod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future pericds If the revision affects both curment and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in financial statemants.

Assessing whether development cosis meest the criteria for capitelisation
The point at which developmant costs meet the criteria for capitalisation is critically dependent on management's judgement of
the point at which technical feasibllity is demonstrable.

The carrying amount of development costs on projects which are not yet avallable for sale or use was:

2017 2016
3 €000 €000
Development costs not available for sale or use 8,209 10,290

Koy sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future, and cther key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting pariod, that may
have a significant Agk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
period, are discussed below.
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5. Critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty {(continued)

Estimating provisions for trade receivablas

The Group has some concentration of credit risk due to the influence of large contracts on its business, albsit these contracts
are directly, or indirectly (via the Group’s distribution partners) predominanity with Govemment agencies both in the UK and
intemationally. To offset this risk the Group has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential
customers before sales are made. The Group does not hold any security or other collateral in respect of its trade recelvables
and sa was exposed to credit risk in respoct of the net trade receivables balance of €39.2 million {2016: €51.8 million) including
overdue receivabie balances relating to projects In emerging markets. An impalrment provision Is maintained in respect of
amounts owed by specific customers where racoverability of the debt Is considered sufficiently uncertain.

Estimating the costs required fo complete long-term contracts

Revenue recognised under long-term contracts is determined by refarence to the stage of completion of the relevant contract,
Assessing the stage of completion requires an estimation of the future costs that will be incurred to complete the contract.
management's assessment of these future costs were amended by 10% then the impact on revenue and gross margin would be
€1.3 mililon (2016: €6.5 million).

Assessing the useful economic lives of capitalised development costs
Managemaent have estimated the useful economic lives of capltalised development costs as three years for developed devices
and seven years for developed platforms basaed on historical knowledge of the life cytle of the Group's products and technology.

If the estimated useful economic life was reduced by one year, net assets would be reduced by €2.5 million at 31 March 2017
and €3.8 million at 1 April 2018, with a corresponding Increase in the Group’s reported profit of €3.2 million and €2.8 million

respectively.

impairment of goodwill, capitelised development costs and acquired intangibles

Determining whethar goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the vatue in uae of the cash generating unit (“CGU") to which
goodwill has been allocated. The valua in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the fulure cash fliows of the CGU, and a
suitable discount rale, in order to calculate the present value. Similar calculations are required In respect of capitalised
development costs and other acquired intanglbles, Changing the assumptions selected by managarent, in particular the
discount rate and growth rate assumptions used In the cash fiow projsctions, could sighificantly affect the Group's impairment
evaluation (see Note 15).

Contingent consideration
Contingent consideratian is payable to the previcus owners of Portalify OY. Management have considered that, based on their
best estimata, up to €0.9 miltion may be payable but no amount has yet been accepted by the previous owners.

Tax estimates

The calculation of the Group's total tax charge for the period necessarlly involves a degree of estimation and judgement in
respect of certain fems whose tax treatment cannot be finglly determined at the reporting date. To the exient that the final
outcome differs from the tax that has been provided, adjustments will be made to income tax and deferred tax provisions.
Furthermore, the recognition of deferrad tax assets is based upon whether itis more likely than not that sufficient and sultable
taxable profits, based on the latest available profit forecasts, will be available in the future against which the reversal of
temporary differences can be deducied,
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6. Revenus
Geographical information
The Croup’s revenue was derived from extermnal customners based in the following geographical iocations:
2017 2016
€000s €000s
Germany 15,719 36,218
United States of America 10,974 3310
Maxico 9,430 3.415
United Kingdom and Ireland 7,732 10,450
Brazil 6.234 27,633
Saudi Arabia 934 29,811
Rest of World 59,145 78,885
110,168 189,723
Revenues from major products and services
The Group's ravenues from its major products and sarvices were as foliows:
2017 2016
€000s €000s
Sales of products 65,787 124,745
Provision of infrastructure solutions and ongoing support services 44,381 64,978
’ 110,168 189,723
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7. Adjusted performance measures

The Group presents adlusted Eamings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation ("EBITDA") and operating profit
{loss) as key performance measures in addition to the operating profit reported under IFRS. The Group conalders that the
exclusion of certain non-recurring or non-cash items provides an altemative measure of the underlying trading performance of
the Group. They may not be comparable to measures with a similar description usad by other entitles.

EBITDA has been calculated as follows:

2017 2016

€000 €000

QOperating loss (142,337) (15,839)
Depraciation (see Note 16} 3,309 3,368
Amortigation (se¢ Note 15} 17,734 13,515
EBITDA (121,204) 1,044
Non-recurring items (see below) 106,350 26,370
Provisicn against receivables in emerging markets {see Note 19} 4,230 2,354
Reversal of capitalised development costs (see Note 15) (6,518) (16,367)
Reversal of the IFRS 2 share-option charge {soe Note 9) 2,733 2,840
Reversal of the NI payable an the shares subject to the [FRS 2 shara-option charge 78 296
_Adjusted EBITDA (14,331) 16,537

Non-recurring items adjusted In calculating adjusted EBITDA comprise the following which have been charged (credited) in
armiving at the operating loss for the period:

2017 2016
Cost of Sales & Research &  Administrative
sales markeling  development expenses Total
€000 €'000 €000 €000 €'000 €'000
Impalrment of:
- Capitalised development costs - - 7,531 - 7.331 5,575
- Software - - - 2,130 2,130 13
- Acquired intangibles - - - 1,891 1,891 2,422
- Goodwill - - - 76,171 76,171 -
- Property, plant and equipment - — - 4,228 4,228 139
- Inventories 761 - - - 761 6,051
- Greek public safety contract
recaivable — - - - - 365
Tolal asset impairments 761 - 7,531 84,420 92,712 14,585
Costs associated with the Capital
Raising and revised banking facillties - - - 9,926 0,926 1,500
Other restructuring costs - 808 1,851 1,659 4,118 6,280
Net movement in contingent
consideration - - -~ (408) {408) (2,627)
Acquisltion costs relating to Teltronic - - - - - 6,652
761 808 9,382 95,599 106,350 286,370
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7. Adjusted performance measures (continued)
Cther adjusted perfformance measures have been calculgted as follows:

Foar the period ended 31 March 2017

Nan- Adjusted
ncome recurring Adjusiments Income
items [0} (i) D) vy () v) (vl stalement
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Revenue 110,168 ~ - - - I — 110,168
Cost of sales {66,333) 761 - - - - - - - (65,572)
Gross profit 43,235 761 - - _ R - _ 44,596
Selling, marketing and
distribution costs {26,051) 608 - - - - - - - {26,343)
Research and
development costs {31,550) 9,382 (6.518) 10,452 - - - - - (18,234}
Administrative expenses (127,671) 85,599 - - 8,462 2,733 78 4,230 — (18.569)
Oparating costs (186,172) 105,588 (6.518) 10,452 6,462 2733 78 4230 - {63,146}
Cperating loss {142,337} 106,350 {6,518) 10,452 6,462 2733 78 4230 -~ {18,550)
Finanglal income 676 - - - - - - - - 876
Financial expense (7,736) 2,387 - - -~ - - - 127 (5,222)
Ngt finencial axponse {7.080 2,387 - - - - - - 127 (4.546)
Loss before tax {149,397) 108,737 (6.518) 10,452 8,462 2,733 78 4,230 127 (23,006)
Income tax cradit {3,783} (4,199} 1,400 (2,218) (1.811) {547) {16) (974} (25) {11,880)
Loss for the
period attributabiq to
owners of the parent (153,180} 104,538 (5,118) 8,237 4,851 2,186 62 3,256 102 (35,076)
For the period endad 1 April 20168
Non- Adjusted
imcome recurring Adjustments income
Statemnent itlsms 0] [25] (i) (v} v} [ (vii)  statement
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 £000 €000 €000 €000
Revenus 189,723 - - - - - - - — 189,723
Cost of sales (118,938) 6,051 - - - - - - - {112,885}
Gross profit 70,787 6,051 - - - - - - - 76,838
Selling, marketing and
distribution costs {31,403) 3,083 - - - - - 2,354 ~  (25,868)
Research and
development costs {24,215) 10,520 (16,367) 8,286 - - - -~ - (21,776)
Administrative expenses {31,008} 6,716 - - A437 2,840 296 - - {16,719
Operating costs (86,626) 20,319 (16,367) 8,286 4,437 2,840 296 2,354 —  (64,461)
Operating {loss) profit {15,839) 28,370 (16,367) B.286 4,437 2,840 296 2,354 - 12,377
Financial income 848 - - - - - - - - 948
Financial expense (4,128} 218 - - - - - - 301 (3,610)
Net financial expanse {3,181} 218 - — - - - - 301 {2,662)
(Loss) profit before tax {19,020) 26,588 (16,367 8.286 4,437 2.840 206 2,354 301 8,715
Income tax credit 8,188 (4.650) 3,273 (1657} (B87) {568) (59) {471) (61) 3,008
{Loes) profit for the
period attributable to
owneres of the parent (10,852} 21,8938 (13,084) 6,629 3,550 2,272 237 1,883 240 12,803

Adjustment items comprise certain non-operational or non-cash items as follows:

{} Reversal of capitalised development costs (see Note 15) ~ capitalisation of development costs Is required, but as this is a cash cost to the business reversing
the amount capitalised In the year, and also the amortisation assachated with amounts capitallsed, is considerad to provide a batier reflaction of the underlying
performanca of the Group.

() Reversal of associated amortisation (ses Note 15) ~ as above,

(¥i} Reversal of amortisation of acquired Intangiblas (see Note 13) —intangible assets acquied through busineas combinations are caplitalised on the balance shest
and amortised over their useful economic ife. The amortisation is a non-cash and non-operational cost to the bushess, s considered 1o provide a better
refiection of tha underying performance of the Group.

(v) Reversal of IFRS 2 share-option charge (see Nole 9) — the charga recognised on issuing share options to empioyees is a non-cash cost to the Group, and
therefore reversing the charge, and related NI payable, is considered to better reflect tha performance of the Group.

(v) Reversal of the NI payable on the shares subject fo the IFRS 2 share-option charge — as sbove.

{vI} Provision ageinst raceivables in emerging markets (see Note 15) — provisions against the recoverability of receivabies in cartatn emerging markets were made
In the period as a result of detarioration in the economic position of those markets. Excluding thess |s considered to provide a bettar reflection of the underlying
performance of the Group.

{vil) Reversal of amorlisation of debt Issue costs [see Note 12) — the amortisation of debt lssuse costs is 2 non-cash ttam, and therefore reversing the cost is
considered to batter raflect the performance of the Group.
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8. (Loss) profit before income tax

2017 2016
€000 €000
In addition to the non-recurring items set cut in Note 7 above,
the loss for the period is stated after charging (crediting):
Cost of Inventories recognised as an expense (included In cost of sales) 48,081 97,752
Depreclation on propsrty, plant and equipment:
— Owned assets 3,309 3,368
- Amounts Included in capitalised development costs (139) (200)
Amartisation of Intangible assets
— Development costs 10,452 8,266
- Software and similar licences B20 7092
— Acquired intangibles 6,462 4,437
Resesarch and non-capitalised davelopment costs (excluding amortisation) 11,716 5,409
Operaling lease rentals:
— Land and bulldings 1,776 2,015
- Plant and machinery 527 50
Trade receivables impairment (included in sales,
marketing and distribution costs and excluding nom-recurring items) 2,424 “n
Forsign exchange losses 891 150
Govemnment grants — RDEC (587) (2,234)
2017 2016
Auditors’ remuneration: €000 €000
-~ Fees payable to the Company's Auditors for the audit of the Company and consolidated
financial statements 287 225
— Foees payable 1o the Company’s Auditors for other services:
- Audit related assurance services (Interim review) a7 41
- Tax compliance services 61 59
- Tax advisory services 31 13
- Corporate finance services 1,045 1.021
— Al other non-audit services - 8
1,491 1,367

9. Employee numbers and costs

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group (including executive Directors) during the period, analysed by

category, was as follows:

2017 2016
Number Number
Research and development 269 330
Sales, marketing and distribution 145 137
Production suppart 216 278
General and administration 72 86
702 831

The aggregate costs of these employees were as follows:
2017 2016
€000 €000
Wages and salaries 39,109 40,503
Social security costs 6,508 6,781
Other pension costs 1,474 1,708
Expense relating to share based payments 2,733 2,840
49,824 51,832
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10. Key management compensation and remuneration of Directors

Total Directors’ remuneration, excluding gains from the exercise of share options, comprised:

2017 2018

£000 €000 £000 €000

Directors' emeluments 1,180 1,407 906 1.237
Company contributions fo money purchase pension plans 63 75 64 87
1,243 1,482 970 1,324

Information on the remuneration of individuai Directors is given in those sections of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
described as having been audited, and those elements required by the Companies Act 2006 and the Financfal Conduct
Authority form part of these financial statements. None of the Directors exercised share options during the perlod (2016: One
exercised shars options in the prior period, giving rise to a taxsble gain of £665,000); the total expense in the income statement
relating to Directors’ share based payments was €1,313,000 (2016; €518,000).

The compensation of the Directors and the six (2016: nfne) other “key management personnel” (as defined within IAS 24) was

as foliows:
2017 2016
€°000 €000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 2,646 2,921
Company contributfons to money purchase schemes 154 217
Termination benefits - 194
Expense relating fo share based payments 2,556 742
5,356 4,074
11. Financial income
2017 20186
€'000 €000
interest receivable and similar income on short-term bank deposits 68 62
Unwind of discounting of frade recelvables 610 886
676 948
12. Financlal expenss
2017 2016
€000 €000
Financial expenses before non-recurring items
Interest payable on borrowings and credit facilities 5,222 3810
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees 127 301
E,349 3,911
Non-recurring financial expenses
De-recognition of unamortised loan arrangement fee related to previous facilittes 1,196 218
Arrangement fee in refation to the revision of the fagility during the period 1,191 -
2,387 218
Total financial expense 7,736 4,129
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43.Income tax

2017 2016
€000 €000
Current ax;
Income tax for the period 2,209 223
Adjustment in respect of pricr periods 17 -
2,316 223
Deferréed tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,477 (8,935)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods - 1,639
Impact of change in UK tax rate - (1,095}
1,477 (8,381)
Total tax in consolidated income statement 3,793 {8,168)

Factors affecting the tax expense (credit) for the period
The tax expensa (credit) for the period is different from the standard rate of corporaticn tax in the UK, which was 20% (2016:
20%). The differences are explained below:

2017 2016

€000 €000
Tax reconcillation
Loss before income tax {149,397) {19,020)
At standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (20,878) (3,804)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 20,064 991
Raestriction on recognition of defarred tex asset related to carrled forward losses 13,978 -
Research and development enhanced expenditure (187) (1,475)
Employee share options 1 (625}
Timing differences. 7 (662)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 17 1,639
Overseas tax credits - (3,588)
Remeasurement of deferred tax due to change in tax rate - (1,005)
Effects of different tax rates of subsidlaries operating In other jurlsdictions {208) 305
QOther - 46
Total tax expense {credit) (see above) 3,783 (8,168)
Effective tax rate -3% 43%

The Finance Act 2015, which provides for reductions in the main rate of comaration tax from 20% to 19% effoctive from 1 Aprit
2017 to 31 March 2020 and 18% effective from 1 April 2020, was substantively enacted on 18 November 2015,

A further reduction In the main rate of comporation tax from 19% to 17% from 1 April 2020 was announced in the March 2018
Budget, and was substantively enacted as part of Finance Bill 2016 on 6 Septomber 2016. These rate reductions have been
reflected In the caloulation of deferred tax at the balance sheet date.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevalling In the respective jurisdictions.

In the light of the reduction in forecast profitability of the Group the full value of the potential deferred tax asset relating to the
Group's trading losses has not been recognised.

14, Dividends
No dividend Is proposed in respect of the financial perfod ended 31 March 2017,

During the curmrent and prior periods the Company paid the following dividends:

2017 2016
€'000 €000

FY16 Interim dividend of 0.79p per Ordinary share - 2,071
FY15 Final dividend of 1.71p per Ordinary share - 4,313
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15. Intangible assets
Acquired
software,
Capitalisation of Software customer
development and similar relationships

costs licences and brand Goodwill Total

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Cost
At 28 March 2015 119,720 5,435 8,405 19,726 153,285
Additions 16,367 508 - - 16,875
Acquisitions 8,162 2,388 49,976 56,446 116,972
Capttalisation of RDEC relating to prior periods’ (2,160) - - - (2,160}
Transfer - 724 - - 724
At 1 April 2016 142,080 9,055 58,381 76,171 285,696
Additions 6.518 673 - - 7,191
Disposals - (3,336) - - (3,336)
At 31 March 2017 148,607 8,392 58,381 78,171 289,551
Amortisation and impairment
At 28 March 2015 79,575 3,487 3,87 - 86,733
Charge for the period’ 8,286 792 4,437 - 13,515
Impaiment* 5,575 13 2,422 - 8.010
Transfer 144 {144} - - -
At 1 April 2016 93,580 4,148 10,530 - 108,258
Charge for the period 10,452 820 6,462 - 17,734
impairment 7,631 2130 1,891 76,171 87,723
Disposals - {3,338} - - (3.336)
At 31 March 2017 111,562 3,762 18,883 76,171 210,379
Net book value
At 31 March 2017 ar,044 2,630 39,498 - 79,172
At 1 April 2016 . 48,509 4,907 47.851 76,171 177,438
At 27 March 20157 40,145 1,048 4,734 19,725 66,552

1 Research and Development Expenditure Credits ("RDEC") wers recognissd for the periods ending 28 March 2014, 27 March 2015 and 1 April 20186, A credit of
€2,160,000 is recorded in 2016 ralating 1o previous periods, with €1,144,000 of this released In 2018 and nettad against the amortisation charge.

2 impairmants in the period relate 1o the write off of intangible asaets relating 10 DMR, comprising acquined ntangibies of €1,520,000 and capitalised RAD of
€4,055,000. The remaining impairment of €2,673,000 relates to Intangible assate acquired with Teltronic which have a fair valus, and therefore need ko be
recognised on acquiaition, but which do not have a value to the Group, and therefore wene immadiataly impaired.

3 mpairments In the curment period have been recomded foliowing the impairment review sel out below.

The only individually material intangible asset comprisas the capitalised development costs for the Next Generation platform,
which have a camying value of €23.5 million at 31 March 2017 (2016: €29.1 million) and remaining amorlisation period of 70

months (2016: 82 months).
The amortisation charge for each period has bean Included within the following captions of the consolidated income statemoent:

2017 2016
€'000 €000
Research and devslopment costs 10,452 8,384
Administrative expenses 7,282 5,131
17,734 13,515
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15. Intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently If there are indications that goodwill may have besn

impaired. Goodwill relates to the acquisition of Teltronic SAU, Fylde Micro Limited, Portallfy OY and 3T Communications AG,

Goodwill acquired in & business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units ("CGU's") or group of units
that are expected to bensfit from that business combination. Before recognition of impalrment losses, the carrying amount of
goodwilll had been allocated as follows:

2017 2016

€'000 €000

Devices 19,725 19,725
Systems 56,446 56,446
76,171 76,171

The reduction In forecast profitabllity of the Group has reduced the recoverable amounts of the total intangiblo assets assoclatod
with the ebove CGUs by €87 723,000, resuiling in a corresponding impaimment of the Group's intanglble assets during the
period.

The recoverable amounts have been determined from valuse in use calculations, In accordance with IAS36 *Impaiment of
Assets”, the kay assumptions for which are set out below:

Assumption How determinsd

Revenues Management have used detailed forecasts for the next two years, which is the forocast period for
detalled cashflow foracasts. A two year period is considered an appropriate imeframe for the
tetalled forecasts as management has a good view of future orders and other ralevant market
dynamics. The detailed forecasts are then extrapolated for periods beyond the forecast pariod by
applying a long term growth rate, as discussed below,

Gross margin Groas margin has been calculated based on the specific customer and product mix Included in
the revenue forecasts.

Operating costs Operating costs are based on detailed forecasts reflecting expected future head-count,
investment In R&D and routes to market and contracted hedge rates for Sterling-denominated
costs.

Capital expenditure Forecast capital expenditure is based on specific planned investment together with historical

B levels of capltal expenditure.
Discountrate  ° The pre-tax discount rate of 10.8% (2016: 8.3%) applied to the cash flows reflacts the weighted

average cost of capital of the Group using the industry standard formula.
Long term growth rate A long term growth rate of 1.9% has been used in calculating the value of cashflows beyond the
forecast period. The growth rate used is based on the forecast GDP growth rate in the countries
in which the Group operates, and other industry specific growth forecasts.

Changing the assumptions sslected by management, In particular the discount rate and growth rate assumptions used in the
cash flow projections, could significantly affect the Group’s impairment evaluation. The impact of adjusting the discount rate
applied by 0.5% would be €5.6 million; the Impact of adjusting the long term growth rate by 0.5% would be €5.4 milllon.
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18, Property, plantt and equipment

Assets
Land and under Plant and T
buildings construction machinery  equipment Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Cost
At 28 March 2015 - 3,296 17,012 3,048 23,354
Foreign exchange - - 125 2 127
Transfers - (9,871) 9,247 - (724)
Additions - 8,330 2,868 282 11,480
Acquisitions 3,163 - 2,940 - 6,103
Disposals - - (2,094) (50) (2,104)
AL 1 April 2018 3,183 1,655 30,138 3,280 38,238
Foreign exchange - - {3} 1 (2)
Transfers - {1,596} 1,586 - -
Additions - 1" 925 548 1,482
Disposats - - {5,830} {1.771) (7.601)
At 31 March 2017 3,163 70 28,826 2,056 32,115
Accumulated depreciation
At 28 March 2015 - - 10,646 2,379 13,0256
Forelgn exchange 25 - 163 - 188
Charge for the perlod 51 - 2,884 333 3,368
Impaiment - - 139 - 139
Dispcsals - -~ (1,752) {48) (1,800)
At 1 April 2016 76 - 12,180 2,664 14,920
Foreign exchange - - (5) - (5)
Charge for the pericd 60 - 2,882 457 3,399
impalirment - - 4,228 - 4,228
Disposals - (5.618) {1,765) (7,383)
At 31 March 2017 136 - 13,867 1,356 15,159
Net book value
At 31 March 2017 3,027 70 13,159 700 16,956
At 1 Aprll 2016 3,087 1,655 17,958 616 23,316
Af 27 March 2015 - 3,296 6,366 667 10,320

There was no capital expenditure at the end of either period which had been contracted for prior to the end of the period but not

provided for In the financial statements.
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17. Deferred tax

The Group's deferred tax assets and (liabllitles) totalled €21,430,000 (2016: €30,788,000) and €15,315,000 (2016: €19,875,000)
respectively and rolate to temporary differences in respect of:

Equtty-
Capitalisad Cash-  Acquired sottled Other  Property,
development flow intangible share temporary plant and

costs hedges assets Losses opfions differences equipment Net

€000 €000 €'000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
At 28 March 2015 (8,029) (503) (847) 8,515 2,790 168 1,300 4,294
Acquired - 172 (14,915) 12,933 - - - (1.810)
Recognised in
income (108) - 2,285 4,136 568 (168) 583 7,286
Recognised in equity:
— Arising on cash
flow hedges - 734 - - - - - 734
— Arising on equity
seftled share options - - - - (696) - - (656)
Change of rate 403 {20) 1,436 {630} - — _ {84) 1,055
AL 1 April 20186 (7,734) 383 {12,141) 25,954 2,662 - 1,789 10,913
Foralgn exchange - - - (8} - - (1) 1t3)
Recognised in
Income 2,284 - 2,266 {8,032) 546 - 1,449 (1,477)
Recognised In equity:
— Asiging on cash
flow hedges - (319) - - - - - (319)
— Arising on equity
settled share options - - —- - (2,993) - - (2,893)
At 31 March 2017 {5,440) 64 (2,873} 17,914 215 - 3,237 8,115

Deferred tax lisbilities have been offset agalnst deferred tax assets at 31 March 2017 where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset cusrent tax assets and current tax liabilities within the same fiscal jurisdiction.

The Group's deferred tax assets have been recognised in accordance with IAS 12 to the extent that, based on historical
performance and future budgets, the Directors belleve that it is probable thet there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
the assets will revgrse. [n the light of the reduction In forecast profitability of the Group €13,975,000 of potential deferred tax
assets relating to trading losses have not been recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabllities may be classified as long-term or current as follows:

2017 2018
€'000 €000
Non-current assets 20,878 25,828
Non-current liabiiities (14,427) (18,359)
6,251 7,469
Current assets 752 4,980
Current liabllites {888) (1,5186)
(438) 3,444
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18. Inventorias

2017 2016
£'000 €000
Raw materials . 8,279 10,146
Work in progress ¢ 4,087 5,225
Finished goods and goods for resale 11,704 11,413
24,050 26,784
An obsoclescence provision is maintained in respect of inventories, the movements on which are set out below:
2017 2016
€'000 €000
At the beginning of the period 9,053 584
Foreign exchange 24 -
Charged (released) to cost of sales in the consolidated income statement
- in relation to the impalmant of DMR Inventory included within non-recurming items 761 3.817
- {n relation to the impalment of Inventory acquired with Teltronic - 2,234
- In relation to slow-moving Inventory following reducsd forecast demand 3,434 179
Acquired with Teltronic SAU - 2,291
Utilised in period {217} (52)
At the end of the period 13,055 9,053
19, Trade and other receivables
2017 2016
€000 €000
Trade receivables 51,833 57,756
Less: provision for impalmment of receivables . (12,643) (5,989)
Trade receivables {nst) 39,190 51,767
Other recelvables 1,461 6,125
RDEC receivable 1,929 3,375
Prepayments and actrued income 28,825 22,985
71,205 84,252

Credit risk ir: relation to trade receivables

The Group has sdgne cancentration of cradit risk due to the influence of large contracts on its business, albeit these contracts
are directly, or indirectly (via the Group’s distribution partners) predominantly with Government agencies both In the UK and
Iinternationally. To offset this risk the Group has implemented policles that require appropdate credit checks on potential
customers before sales are made. Customer orders are checked against pre-set requirements before acceptance and formal
cradit control procadures are applied subsequent to involcing the customer. Letters of credit and payments in advance are also

obtained from customers as appropriate.

The Group does not hold any security or other collateral In respect of its trade recelvables and so was exposed to credit risk in
respect of the net trade receivables balance of €39,180,000 (2016: €51,767,000). Management befleve that the cradit quality of
trade receivables which are within the Group's typical pasyment terms of between 30 and 90 days is good, with €8,615,000
(2016: €10,157,000) being overdue but not impaired at the period end, of which €2,711,000 was less than 30 days ovardue

(2016: €1,581,000) and €822 ,00¢ (2016: €7,537,000) was more than 90 days overdus.

An Impaiment provision is maintafned in respect of amounts owad by specific customers which were more than 120 days
overdue and where recoverability of the debt was consldered sufficiently uncertain. While the Board will continue to pursue fult
ssttlement of these amounts, the timing and vaiue of any payments is uncertain. During the period the Group provided a further
€4,230,000 (2016. € 2,354,000) in relation to receivables from contracts in emerging markets, where customers face particular
payment challenges, especially from eurmency movemnents. In addition, the Group provided €2,424,000 {2016: €47,000) in

relation to customers in more fraditional marksts.
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19. Trade and other receivables (continued)
The movement in the impairment provision during the period and the prior pariod is shown below:

2017 2016

€'000 €000
At the beginning of the period 5,989 2,070
Charged (released) to the consolidated Income statement 2424 {47)
Acquired - 1,360
Provislon against Greek public safety contract included In non—recurring items ~ 365
Provision against receivables in emerging markets 4,230 2,354
Utilised in the period - (113)
At the end of the period 12,643 5,989
Foreign exchangs risk in refation to trade receivables
The camying amounts of the Group’s trada receivables are denominated in the following cumencles:

2017 2016

€'000 €000
Euro 27,670 32,212
Sterling 1,519 1,892
US dollar 1,744 7,607
Brazilian Real 7,197 9,691
Other 1,060 365
Total 38,190 51,767

The Group's overall foreign exchange risk is explained in Note 30 "Financlal instruments”.

20. Restricted cash

Tha Company received €3.9 million of advance payments from a customar in FY16 that were treated as "restricted cash” in
accordance with |AS 7 "Statement of cash flows” as, although the funds were held In a separate amount in the Company’s
name, they were not available for general use unlil predetermined periods had lapsed following the dalivering of the related
goods. All of tha periods lapsed during FY17, lifting all such restrictions.

21. Cash and cash squlvalents
The denomination and interest rate risk profile of the Group's cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

2017 2016

. Cash atbank Short-term Cash ethank  Short-term
i and in hand deposits Total and In hand deposits Total
€'000 €'000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Sterling 17 1,040 1,057 14 217 231
US dotlar 688 428 1,116 23 38 61
Euro 1,700 - 1,700 1,832 A 1,843
Other currencles 307 - 307 119 - 119
Total 2,712 1,468 4,180 1,988 266 2,254

The credlt risk associated with cash and cash equivalents is mitigated by holding funds with counterparties with high credit
ratings assigned by Intemational credit rating agencies. Deposit accounts represent amounts placed on shor-term deposit on
the money markets through accounts held at AA2 to AA3 rated banks (2016; AA2 to AA3 rated).

22. Borrowings
Borrowings outstanding at the end of the period
2017 2016
€000 €000
Bank overdrafts 9,420 4,643
Bank borowings, all of which are denominated in Euros, are repayable as follows:
Within one year 78,415 70,284
In the second year 9,331 11,392
In the third to fifth year inclusive - 33,315
in more than five yaars - 2,052
87,166 121,686
Less: amounts due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current liabilities) (87,835} (74,827}
Amount due for setflement after 12 months 9,331 46,759
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22. Borrowings (continued)

Facilities

On 1 May 2015 the Group entered into a €50 million term loan for 2 period of five years, together with a €70 million revolving
cradit facility that is available for five years, as part of the financing for the acquisition of Teltronic. These facilities were revised
in June 2016 as part of the Capital Ralsing, and were subsaquently repald after the balance sheet date, following the completion
of the Acquiaition as sef out in Note 34.

Al 31 March 2017%he Group's borrowings comprised €43,300,000 of the term loan and a drawdown of €31,000,000 of the
revolving credit facility, both of which bear interest at LIBOR plus up to 4.25%.

Additional borrowings comprise loans acquired with Sepura Systerms GmbH, Portalify OY and Teltronic SAL. Bank borrowings
at Sepura Systems GmbH comprise an export loan of €1,500,000 which bears interest at 2.25% and a term loan of which
€74,000 is outstanding, is repayable in monthly instalments of €11,000, and bears interest of 3.78%. Bank borrowings at
Portalify OY comprise development funding loans of €348,000, which are repayabla in annual Instaiments through to 2017 and
bear interest at the Bank of Finland base rate less 3% (subject to a minimum of 1%), and €225,000 of other loans repayable
monthly or quarterly that bear interest at 1%. Barnk borrowings at Teltronic SAU compriss loans totaliing €11,018,000.
€1,877,000 of this is repayable on demand, with the remainder being for specific projects and which bear Interest of between
0% and 3.95% and are repayable over periods over perlods of up between 4 and 10 years.

Bank overdrafts of €2,420,000 are secured agalinst the assels of the Group. Other guarantees are disclosed In Note 31, while
changes in the Group's principal bank facilities since the end of the year are set out in Note 34,

23, Trade and other payables

2017 2016
€000 €000
Trade payabies 11,217 24,358
Other taxation and soclal security 1127 1,910
Accruals 11,800 19,241
Deferred Income 9,691 3,081
Payments in advance 848 659
34,483 49,249

Non-current
Deferred income 2,075 7,509

Non-cumrent deferred income relates to non-standard warranty package revenues, which are amortised over the underlying
period of the wamanty cover, and amounts billed in advance on Systems contracts.

At the end of the period the Group had entered into supply agreements under which the Group has minimum contraciual
purchase commitmeants of €12.4 mlllion (2016: €11.8 million) during the three month period subsaquent to the period end.

Foreign exchangeurisk In relation to irade payables
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payabiles are denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016

€000 €000
Euro 5,413 13,284
Steriing 3,116 3,806
US dollar 2,434 4,819
Brazlian Reals 207 -
Other currencles 47 2,448
Total 11,217 24,358
The Group's overall foreign exchange risk is explained in Note 30 *Financial instruments™.
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24. Provisions

2017 2016
Warranty Contingent Wamranty Centingent
provislon consideration Other Total provision consideration Other Total
€000 €'000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
At the beginning of the
period 3,568 3,101 1,088 7,857 896 6,098 - 7,804
Foreign exchange - (126) {126) - - -~ -
Arising on acquisiifon of
Teltronic SAU - - - - 2,409 - 1,308 3,715
Subseaquent Increase
(releasea) of part
of the contingent
consideration - - - - - (2,627) - (2,827)
Charged {released} to
the consolidated
income statement 550 (406) (307) {163) 263 - (208} 55
Settled or utilised in
period {864) {1,782) —  {2,646) - {1,180) ~  (1,180)
At the end of the period 3,254 877 791 4,922 3,568 3,191 1,008 7,857
Less: amounts due for
settiement within
12 months {shown
under current llabilities) (2,493) (877) (455) (3,825) (2,994) (3,191} (307) (6.492)
Amount due for
seitiement after 12
months 761 - 338 1,087 574 - 791 1,365

Warranty provision

A warranty provision Is made at the ime of sale for the estimated cost of providing standard warranty cover which cannot be
soparated from the sale of the underlying goods. The provision is calculated based on historical information regarding the cost
and frequency of repairs required to the Group's products. Warranty cover Is typlcally provided over & period of three fo five
years, dapending on the product and termitory concerned, The Group also has back-to-back warranties of betwesn twelve and
fiftaen months with the majerity of its sub-eontract manufacturers to limit risk on liabilities arising on manufacturing defects.

Contingent consideration

Contingent consideration of up to €4.9 million and €2.1 milllon was payable to the previous owners of Portalify OY and Fylde
Micro Limited respectively in the event that revenue and operating profit targets were met over a certain period. €1.8 mililon was
paid during the period to the previous owners of Fylde Micro Limited. Management have considered that, based on
managerment’s best estimate, up to €0.9 milllon may be payable In relation to Portalify OY but no amount has yet besn accepted
by the previous owners.

4]
Other
Other provisions relate to potential royalties due on piroducts sold in pravious periods. The provision will be released as the
related sales pass the statute of limitations for a claim, with the full amount released over a period of three years.
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25. Ordinary share capital

Authorisad share capital
2017 2018
Number £ €000 Number £ €000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of £0.0005 each 400,000,000 200,000 227 400,000,000 200,000 227
Issuad shere capital

During the period and the prior paricd the following changes occurred in the Company’s issued, aflotted and fully paid share
capital of Ordinary shares of £0.0005 each:

Share Share

capital premium

Number £ €000 €000

At 28 March 2015 138,645,431 69,323 79 909
1ssue of new shares, net of expenses of €5,173,000,

as part of the acquisition of Teltronic SAL 46,538,461 23,269 31 77,423

At 1 April 2016 185,183,892 §2,592 110 78,422

Issue of new shares, net of expenses of €4,348,000 185,714,285 92,857 113 73,634

At 31 March 2017 370,898,177 185,440 223 152,056

On 15 July 2018 the Company issued 185,714,285 new Crdinary shares for 35p per Ordinary share by way of a Firm Placing,
and Placing and Open Offer (the "Capital Ralsing”), to reducs the Group’s teverage and, in conjunction with amendments made
at the same time to its main banking facllities, provide working capltal for the Group.

Changes in the Company’s issued share capital since the end of the period as a result of the Acquisition are datalled in Mote 34.
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which catry no right to fixed income.

Treasury shares
During the period and the prior period the following changes occurred in the number of Ordinary shares held in Treasury:

Aggregate Employee
conslderation consideration

Number €000 €000
At 28 March 2015 1,220,099
Purchase of Ordinary Shares for Treasury 2,426,157 5,463 -
Exercise of options under employee share option schemes {2,8629,774) - 703
At 1 April 2016 816,482
Exercise of options under emplayee share option schemes (775) — 1
At 31 March 2017 B15,707

Changes in the Céfmpany's Treasury shares since the end of the period as a result of the Acquisition are detailed in Note 34.

26. Share based payments
Share options have been granted to Directors and smployeas under the following equity-settied schemes:

i. Long Term Incentive Plan
The Group launched its Long Term ncentive Plan for senior executives and management in July 2008. Annual awards have

besn made under the Long Term Incentive Plan which will vest in the event that certain performance targets are met.

li. Employee SAYE schemes
Following sharehoider approval at the 2008 AGM the Company launched an all-employse SAYE scheme in September 2008.

li. Dafatred bonus shares
Deferred shares are issued as part of the bonus arrangements for senior management.

‘The Group recorded an expense of €2,733,000 (2016: £2,840,000) In relation to equity-seftied share based payments during the
period. Information on the Impact of the Acquisition on the Group's share option schemes is provided in Note 34,
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26. Share bassd payments (continued}

Movements In the total number of share options outstanding and their relative weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

2017 2016

Waeighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
priceIn£ of options priceinE  of options
per share {000s) per share (000s)
At the baeginning of the period 0.32 6,785 0.22 8,846
Adjustment arising: from equity issue during the period - 5 - -
Granted * - 4,07¢ 0.37 2,419
Forfelted and lapsed 0.61 (3,558) 0.06 {1.650)
Exarcised 0.02 (50) 0.19 {2,830)
7,258 0.32 6,785

At the end of the period =

The waighted average share price at the date of exercise of the options exercised during the period was £0.59 (2016: £1.62).

Tha outstanding options may be analysed as follows:

2017 2016

Weightad Weightad

Average avarage
Exercise Number exercige Number
price In£ of options price in£ of opfions
per share {000s) per share (000s)
Vested and exercisable - 97 - -
Unvested - 7,161 0.32 6,785
7,258 6,785

Share options outstanding at each reporting date have the following expiry date and exercise prices.

2017 2016
Exercise price Number Number
Expiry date Scheme in £ per share {000s) {000s)
31 July 2016 2013 Deferred shares = 97 97
31 July 2016 2014 LTIP ! - 1,707
1 March 2017 2014 SAYE 3 year schame 0.96 - 305
30 April 2017 2012 SAYE 5 year scheme 0.43 - 14
16 June 20 17 2015 LTIP - 1,032 1,032
17 July 2017 2015 Deferrsd shares = 34 34
31 July 2017 2014 Defemed shares . 89 69
28 February 2018 2015 SAYE 3 year scheme 1.18 7 462
1 March 2018 2013 SAYE 5 year schame 0.54 28 114
16 June 2018 2015 Additional LTIP - 312 312
5 August 2018 2017 LTIP = 1,155 -
13 August 2018 2016 LTIP - 1,401 1,401
4 January 2019 2016 Addltional LTIP - 197 197
10 February 2019 2016 SAYE 3 year scheme 1.20 6 537
1 March 2019 2014 SAYE 5 year scheme 0.96 - 133
5 August 2019 2017 LTIP -t 2,920 -
28 Februaty 2020 2015 SAYE 5 year scheme 1.19 - 227
10 February 2021 2016 SAYE § year scheme 1.29 - 144
7,258 6,785

1 Not applicable for awards under the LTIP scheme o delerred shanes forming part of the short-term bonus amangements for senlor management

The weighted average remaining contrachual life of the outstanding options was 1 year and 6 months (2016: 1 yearand 8
months); following the completion of the Acquisition on 25 May 2017 a total of 1,328,179 options vested and the remalndar

lapsed.
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26, $hare based payments (continuod)
The fair value of servicas received in return for share options granted are measured by referenca to the fair value of share
options granted, The estimate of the fair value of the services recaived is measured based on the trinomial model. The

significant inputs into the model for each grant during the period and the prior pariod were:

2017 LTIP
Performance Service
based based
Date of grant 5 August 2016 § August 2016
Share price at grant
date £0.56 £0.56
Exercise price - .
Number of amplogéees 43 41
Shares undor option 2,920,562 1,155,000
Vesting period 38 months 24 months
Expected volatility
{oxpressed as
standard deviation of
expected share price
returns) 34% 34%
Expected option life 36 months 24 months
Risk free interast rate
(based on national
Govemment bonds) 0.22% 0.22%
Dividend yield - -
Fair value per option £0.56 £0.56
2015 2016
deferred 2016 Additional 2016 2016
bonus LTIP LTIP SAYE SAYE
Date of grant 14 July 2015 13 August 2016 4 January 2016 10 August 2015 10 August 2015
Share price at grant
date £1.58 £1.60 £1.86 £1.57 £1.57
Exercise price - - - £1.2p £1.29
Number of employees B 46 1 20 3z
Shares under option 33,540 1,501,698 196,890 143,573 543,071
Vesting period 24 months 36 months 38 months €0 months 36 months
Expected voiatility
({exprossed as
standard deviation of
expedted share price
retums) 10% 34% 20% 33% 33%
Expected option life 24 months 36 months 36 months 63 months 39 months
Risk free interest rate
(based on national,
Government bondg) 2.5% 25% 2.5% 25% 2.5%
Dividend yield 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2%
Fair value per oplion £1.51 £1.50 £1.74 £0.52 £0.46

The expected volatility for options granted during the period and prior pericd was determined by reference to the Company’s
share price since Listing In August 2007. Share options are granted under a service condltion. Such conditions are not taken

into account in the fair value measurement of the senvices received.
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27.Cash used In operations

2017 2016
€000 €000
Loss before income tax (149,397) (19,020)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation charges 3,399 3,368
Amortisation charges 17,734 13,615
Impalment charges 81,951 8,149
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 218 304
Gain on derivative financial instruments (58) -
Equlty settied share based payment charge 2,733 2,840
Financial income (678) (848)
Financial expense 7,736 4,129
{Cash {usad in) geperated from operations before movements in working capital {26,358) 12,337
Dacrease (increase) in inventories 2,734 {6,363)
Decrease {Increase) in trade and other receivables 13,825 {92)
{Decrease) increase in trade and other payables (19,759) (13,246)
Decrease In provisions {1,027) (2,572)
Movements In working capltal (4,227) (22,273)
Receipt (release) of restricted cash 3,925 (3,925)
Cash {used in) operations {28,680) {13.881)
28. Reconcliiation of cash flows to movements In net debt
2017 2018
€’000 €000
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,029 (182)
Net (drawdown) repayment of borrowings 25,843 (103472}
Release (recelpt) of restricted cash {3,925) 3,925
Armmangement foa - 1,620
Changes in net debt resulting from cash flows 23,847 (98,089)
Amortisation of debt issue costs (127} (301)
Write off unamortised arrangement fee on old facility (1,1986) (218)
Bomrowings acquired with subsidiary undertaking - (15.786)
Nat mavemants In nat debt 22,524 (114,394)
Net funds (debt) at the baginning of the period (115,507) (1,128)
Foreign exchange (3} 15
Net debt at the and of the period (62,086) (115,507)
Net funds (debt) comprises:
Restricted cash - 3,925
Cash and cash equivalents 4,180 2,254
Gross bomowings— Amounts due within onae year (87,835) (74,927)
. Amounts due after one year {9,331) {48,759)

(92,986}  (115,507)

29. Operating lease commltments
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable opersting leases are as follows:

2017 2016

Plant and Plant and
machinery  Property Total machinery  Property Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €000 €000 €000
No later than one year 507 1,835 2,142 558 624 1,182
Later than one year and no later than five years 438 5,805 6,241 877 6,652 7,528
More than five years - 14,208 11,208 - 13,400 13,490
943 18,648 19,591 1,435 20,766 22,201

The Group rents its principal premises in Waterbeach under a lease which explres on 30 July 2030.
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30. Financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments

2017 2016
€'000 €000
Derivatives that are designated and effective as
hedging instruments carried at falr value — cash flow hedges
Foreign exchange derivafive financial instruments (through equity) (345) (2,308)

The above foreign exchange derivative financial instruments, which mature at various dates during the coming and subsequent
years, represent aggregate sales of €20,605,000 and $11,509,000 and purchases of £17,653,000 and €10,383,000 (2016
aggregate sales of €33,365,000 and $8,937,000 and purchases of £25,040,000 and €7,569,000).

Financial assets and liabilities
The Group’s accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the items below:
2017 2016
" Derivatives Derivatives
Loans and used for Loans and used for
receivables hedging receivables hedging
Assets as per balanca sheet €'000 €'000 €000 €000
Trade and other receivables, excluding prepayments 42,580 - 60,464 =
Derlvative financlal Instruments - - - ~
Cash and cash equivalents 4,180 - 2,254 -
46,760 - 62,718 —
2017 2016
Liabilitles Liabilities
at fair at fair
value value
through Derivatives Other through Dertvatives Other
profit and used for financlal profit and used for financial
loss hedging labilities loss hedging liabliitles
Liabllities as per balance sheet €'000 €000 €'000 €000 €000 €000
Bomowings, excluding capitalised
arrangement fee - - (87,166) - - {123,009}
Derivative financial instruments - {345) - - (2,309) -
Trade and other payables, excluding
non—financial instruments - - (33,356) - — {46,680)
Contingent consideration {877) - - (3,191) . -
(877) (345) {130,522) (3,11) {2,309) (169,689)
Trade raceivables

Trade receivables ara recognised inltially at falr value, which includes discounting as significant where recelpt of paymaent is not
expected for more than one year, and subsequently re-measured at amortised cost using the effactive interest rate method, less
provision for Impairment. The unwind of discounting is recognised in finance income across the period to the recelpt of cash. A
provision for impairment of trade recelvables |s established where there is objactive evidence that the Group will net be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of recefvables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probabllity
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial recrganisation, or default or definguency In payments are consldered to be
indicators that the:frade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discountad at the effective interast rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of foss is recognised In the consolidated Income
statement within administrative expenses. When a trade receivable is imecoverable, [t Is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the frade recsivable
impalment provision in the consolidated income statement. Detafls concerning the credit risk associated with trade recelivables
are set out in Note 19 above.

Derivative financial instrumenis and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date that a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measurad at their fair value. Details conceming darivative financial instruments are set out above.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents Include cash In hand, deposliis held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three moriths or less. Further detafls are set out In Note 21 above.
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30. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value estimation

The fair value of foreign exchange contracts is determined by comparing contracted forward exchange rates with the prevaliing
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. As a rasult they fall into “Level 2° of the fair value hierarchy as defined in Paragraph

27A of IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments; Disclosures”.

The fair value of the contingent consideration is determined by comparing the contractual terms of the consideration to actual
and forecast post acquisition resulis. As a result the contingent consideration falls into “Leve! 3” of the fair value hierarchy. The
movement in the fair value of the contingent consideration Is disclosed in Note 24.

The nominal value less impaiment provision of trade receivables and payables approximates to their fair value. The book value
of all other financlal assets and liabilities approximate fo falr value.

Financial risk management

The Group's operations expose it to financial risks that include the effects of changes in certain currency rates, credit risk and
interest rate cash flow and fair value risk. The Group has in place risk management procedures that seek to limit the adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Group by menitoring the movements in relevant cumrancy and interest rates and a

credit control prockdure to minimise the risk of customer debt default.

The Board of Directors aels the policies for liquidity, credit and Interest rate cash flow and fair value risk, and these are
implemented by the Group's finance depariment which has a procedures manual that sets out specific guidelines for managing
currency, Interest and credit risk. In circumstances where it is appropriate financial Instruments are used to manage thoss risks.

The financial risks to which the Group s exposed changed following the acquisition of Tellronlc. The principal changes were an
increased exposure to the Brazilian Real, and an increase in interest rats risk as a resutt of the additional financing facilities

taken out to fund the acquisition.

Market nisk managemant
The Group Is not exposed to market risks other than currency and interest rate risks.

Foreign exchange risk

Curmrency denominated bank accounts are maintained to provide some cover for timing differences, and a currency exchange
hedging policy has been agreed by the Board of Directors. The Group primarily invoices its customers In Sterling pounds (GBP),
US dollars (US$), Euros (€) end, following the acquisition of Teltronic, Brazilian Real (B$), and the majority of the Group’s
suppliers also trade in these currencies. The exposure to other currencies is not material to the Group's operations.

i. Sterling

The Group has a partial natural hedge as operating expenses are primarlly denominated in Sterling and this exposure Is partly
offset by Sterling recelvabies from the Group's UK business. However, there remains a net exposure and the Board has agreed
a policy of taking out forward contracts on a rolling twelve month basis to hedge the forecast monthly Sterling operating costs.

The Group had the following currert assets and liabilities denominated in Sterding:

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Gross contracted amount of outstanding forward contracts {17,653) {25,040}
Trade receivables denominated in GBP 1,305 1,513
Sundry receivables denominated in GBP - 83
Cagh balances denominated in GBP 807 185
Trade payables denominated in GBP (2,678) (3,043)
Other payables depiominated in GBP {8,303) (8,128)
Percentage of net'current assets not matched by forward contracts 93% -
The period-end rate and the average rale for the period were as follows:

2017 2016
Period-end rate €116/81 €1.25/81
Average rate for the pariod €1187€1 €1.31784
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements {continued)
For the period ended 31 March 2017

30. Financlal instruments {continued)

Fareign exchange fisk (continued)

i Sterling (continued)

if Sterling had weakenad or strengthensd by 10% against the Euro then the following additional foreign exchange gains {losses)
would have been reported in the consolidated income statement or consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

2017 2016

€'000 €000

GBP weakens 54 {1,778)
GBP strengthens (49} 1,956

il. US Dollar
Purchases and receipts in US dollars are dealt with through the Group’s US dollar current account, with further purchases of
currency to meet US dollar denominated liabilities being made as necessary on & spot basis. Any significant US doflar revenues

or purchases are hedged on otder confirmation.
The Group had the following current assets and liabilities denominated in US dollars:

¢ 2017 2016

$'000 $000

Gross contracted amount of outstanding forward contracts 11,500 8,937
Trade receivables denominated in US doflars 1,625 B,630
Cash balances denominated in US dollars 1,042 69
Trade payables denominated in US dollars {2,287) (5.467)
Percentage of netl current asséts not matched by forward contracts (307TY% -

The period-end rate and the average rate for the perlod wera as follows:

2017 2016
Period-end rate $1.07/€1  $1.13/€1
Average rata for the period $1.10/ €1 $1.1G /€1

If the US dollar had weakened or strengthened by 10% against the Euro then ths following additional foreign exchange gains
(losses) would have been reported in the consolidated Income statament or consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

2017 2016
€'000 €000
LIS dollar weakens 132 459
US doliar strengthens {120) {505)

lil. Brazilian Resl
Purchases and receipts in Brazilian Real are dealt with through the Group's Brazilian Real current account, with further

purchases of curmency to meet Brazilian Real denominated liabilities befng made as necessary on a spot basis.
The Group had the following current assets and labliities denominated in Brazilian Real:

2017 2016

R$'000 R$'000

Gross contracted amount of cutstanding forward contracts - -
Trade receivables denominated in Brazilian Real 24,114 39,268
Cash balances déAominated in Brazlilan Real — 324
Trade payables denominated in Brazllian Real (694) (2,043)
Other payables denominated in Brazilian Real {1,161) -
Percentage of nat cumrent assets not matched by forward contracts 100% 100%
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
For the period ended 31 March 2017

30. Financial inatrements (continuad)
Forelgn exchange risk {continued)
iii Brazll Real (continued)

The period-end rate and the average rate for the period were as follows:

2017 2018
Period-end rate R$3.35/€1 R$4.08/€1
Average rate for the period R$3.58/€1 R$396/€1

If the Brazilian Real had weakened or strengthened by 10% agalnst the Euro then the following additional forelgn exchange
gains (losses} would have been reporied In the consolidated income statement or consolidated statement of comprehensive
Income:

2017 2018
€000 €'000
Brazillan Real weakens {553) (843)
Brazilian Real strengthens 503 927

Liquidity risk - ¢

Prudent liquidity fisk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and short-tem deposits and the avallability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credlt facliifes. The Group has recelved confirmation from the Group’s uitimate
parent company that it will provide sufficient financial support to ensure that the Group can meet its obligations as they fall due.

The table below analyses the Group's financial Habllities, which will be settled on a net basis, into relevant maturity groupings
basad on the remaining perlod at the balance sheet dato to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosad in the tabla
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Betwaen Between
oneyear 1&2years 28&5 years

€000 €000 €000
At 31 March 2017
Borrowings 87,835 9,331 -
Trade and other payablas, excluding non—financial Instruments 33,356 - -
Contingent consideration 877 - -
At 1 April 2016
Borrowings 74,827 11,382 35,567
Trade and other payabies, excluding non—financial Instruments 46,675 - -
Contingent consideration 3,181 — -

Borrowings are Euro-denominated.

Cash fiow and fair value interest rafe risk
The Group had Interest bearing cash deposits of €1,468,000 (2016: €266,000).

The Group's outstanding borrowings comprise €13,169,000 (2016: €10,947,000) which bears Interest at fixed rates and
€83,997.000 (2016: €106,246,000) which bears interest at floating rates as set out in Note 22 abova, exposing the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. A change of 1% In Interest rates at the balance sheet date, applied to borrowings outstanding at that
point in time, would hava had a €840,000 impact on the Group's reported results (2016: €1,081,000).

Off-setting
Cash balances of €nil (2016: €6,708,000) have been ofi-set against bank overdrafts where there is a legal right of set-off.

ok o
Capital risk maragement
The Group's objectives when managing capltal are fo safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order to
provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. The capital structure of the Group comprises borrowings (as disclosed in Note 22), cash and cash equivalents
{as disclosed in Note 21) and the equity attributable to equity hoidars in the parant company {comprising the Issued share
capltal, share premium, other reserves and refained eamings disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity). At
31 March 2017 the Group had net assets of €60,469,000 (2016: €137 856,000) which included net debt of €82 986,000 (2016:
Net debt of €115,507,000). In order to malntaln or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to sharsholders, retum capital to shareholders, issue new shares, borrow additional funds or sell assets to reduce debt.
Tha Group is not subject to extemally imposed caplital requirements.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
For the peniod ended 31 March 2017

31. Contingent liabilities

The Group has entered Into guarantes and performance bond amrangements with its customers totalling approximately €16.2
million {2016: €12.5 million). The Group is also subject to disputes with suppliers during the ordinary course of business.
Provision Is made for any amounts that the Directors consider will probably become payable under such arrangements.

32. Uitimate controtling party
The Directors do not consider that Sepura pic had an uitimate controlling party as of 31 March 2017, as no indiidual
shareholder was able to exercise control over the Company.

Following the completion of the Acquisition on 25 May 2017, the Directors considar that:

)

)

the immediate parent company is Project Shertway Limited, a company registered in England and Wales;

the ulimate parent company is Hytera Communications Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in the People's
Republic of China; and

the ultimate controlling party is Mr Chen Qingzhou who Is the majority voting rights hoider in Hytera Communications
Corporation Lirmtted

33. Related party transactions
Balanceas and transactions between the company and its subsidlaries, which are relaied partles, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclozed in this note.

The remunaration of the key management parsonnel of the Group is disclosed in Note 10, n addition, £155,000 of fees were
charged by Corporate Development Parinership Limitad during the period in respact of services provided by Andrew Leeser
following his appointment as a Director, of which £11,000 was outstanding at the end of the year. There are no other
transactions with related partias.

34 Post balance shest evonts

On 16 Decamber 2016 the Board announced it was recommending a cash offer for the Company by Project Shortway Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hytera Communications Corporation Limited ('the Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on
25 May 2017 and pursuant to the Acquisition:

Share capital and share options

1

A total of 1,155,000 awards granted under the Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan vested and were satisfied by the
transfer from Treasury of all 815,707 of the Company’s ordinary shares held in Treasury together with the issue of
339,293 new Ordinary shares in the Company;

A total of 173,179 awards granted under the Company's Deferred Bonus Plan vested and the accrued benefits were
cancelled in return for a cash settiement;

All other awards under the Company's share option schemes lapsed on completion of the Acquisition; and

Dealings in the Company’s Ondinary shares on the London Stock Exchange’s main market for listed securities and the
listing of the Company’s Ordinary shares on the promium listing segment of the Official Llet of the UK Listing Authority

_werae suspended, and applications were successfully made to delist the Company’s Ordinary shares from the former and
to cancel the admission to trading of the latter.

Banking facliities

b

Under the terms of the Group's syndicated banking facilities, all outstanding amounts became repayabls on completion
of the Acquisition; and

The Company entered into intercompany loan agreements with other subsidlaries of Hytera Communications
Corporation Limited on 24 May 2017 which were drawn down to setfle the outstanding amounts due under the Group's
syndicated banking facilities.

A

Board changes

?

All of the Campany’s Nan-Exscutive Directors, togethar with the Interim Chief Executive Cfficer, resignad from the Board
following the completion of the Acquisftion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Sepura pic

Report on the parent company financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, Sepura plc's parent company financial statements (the *financlal statements™):

) give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2017,

) have been properly prepared in accordance with Unitad Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
y have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

What we have audited
The financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Accounts (“Annual Report”), comprise:

) the Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017;

) the Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and

> the notes to the financlal statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Certain required disciosures have been presented elsewhere In the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial
statements. These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are Identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law (United Kingdom Generally
Accapted Accounting Practice).

In applying the financlal reporting framework, the Directors have made a number of subjectiva judgements, for example in

respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and consideroed future
events,

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

) the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financlal year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financlal statements; and

H the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In addition, In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Parant Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors’

Report. We have nothing to report in this respect.
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

»  the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinlon:

] we have not received all the Information and explanations we require for our audit or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not
been recelved from branches not vistted by us; or

) the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and retumns; or

» the financial statements are not in agreament with the accounting racords and retums.

We have no axceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Sepura plc (continued)

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companles Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
spacified by law are nat made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibitities for the financlal statemsents and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of tha Directors
As explainaed more fully In the Statement of Directors’ Responsibifities set out on page 16, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being setisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in actcordance with applicable law and
intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)™). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the parent company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accapt or
assume responsibllity for any other purpose or to any other perscn to whom this report is shown or into whose hands It may
come save where expressly agread by our prior consent in wriling.

What an audit of financial statements Involves

Wae conducted our audit In accordance with 1SAs (UK & irefand). An audit involves abtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financlal statements are free from
matsrial misstatemant, whether caused by fraud or emor. This Includes an assessment of:

} whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Parent Company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequatsly disclosad;

) the reasonableness of significant accounting astimates made by the Directors; and
) the overall presentation of the financlal statements.

We primarily focug, our work in these areas by assessing the Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our own
Judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, fo the extent we consider necessary to provide
a reasonable basls for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audlt evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information In the Annual Report to Identify material Inconsistencles with
the audited financial statements and to Identify any Information that is apparently materlally Incorrect basad on, or matarially
inconsistant with, the knowladgse acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. With respect to the Strelegic Report and
Directors' Raport, we consider whether those reporis include the disclosures required by applicable legal requirements.

Other matter
Wa have reported separately on the Group financlal statements of Sepura pic for the 52 week period ended 31 March 2017.

o b

Matthew Mullins (Senlor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Charterad Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Cambridge

28 September 2017
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Company Balance Sheet

Of Sepura ple, Company number 04353801, as at 31 March 2017

2017 2016
Note €000 €000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 3 10,727 16,009
Intangiple assets 4 29,340 41,772
Investments in subsidiaries 5 64,100 142,500
Total fixed assets 104,167 200,281
Current assets
Stock & 12,842 13,397
Debtora 7 32,108 55,541
Restricted cash ) - 3,025
Derlvative financial instruments 10 30 -
Cash at bank and In hand 2,011 402
Total current assets 47,088 73,265
Current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 12 (97,208) (105,761)
Provisions for liabilities 13 {1,174 (3,866)
(88,382 (109,627)
Net current labilities {51,293 (36,362}
Total assets less current liabilities 52,874 163,919
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more then one year 12 {(2,285) (42,730)
Provision for liabilities 13 (761) (574)
Net assets 49,848 120,615
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 14 223 110
Share premium 14 152,056 78,422
Other reserves i (750) (690)
(Accumulated icsses) retalned samings (101,881) 42,773
49 848 120,615

Total equity

Sepura plc reported a loss for the financial year of €145.9 million (2016: €24.8 million).

The parent company financial siatements on pagas 57 to 85 were approved by the Board for issue on 28 September 2017 and

are signad on its behalf by:

Lol LB

Richard Smith
Chilef Financlal Officer
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Of Sepura Plc, Company number 04353801 for the year ended 31 March 2017

Retained
eamings

Share Share Other  (Accumulated Total

capital premium reserves logses) equity

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
At 27 March 2015 79 090 (275) 80,770 81,573
Loss for the period - - - (24,765) (24,765)
Other comprehensive expense for the period - - {415) (4,232) {4,647}
Total comprehensive expense - - {415) {28,997) {29,412)
Transactions with owners
Tax on share option schemes - - - (696) (696)
Employee share option schemes: vatue of
employee services - - - 2,840 2 840
Equity dividends paid - - - {6,384) (6,384)
lssue of shares 31 77,423 - - 77454
Treasury shares — purchase of own sharas - - - {5,463) (5,463)
Treasury shares — issue of shares to settle
employee share options - - - 703 703
Total transactons with cwners 31 77,423 - (9,000} 68,454
At 1 April 2016 110 78,422 (690) 42,773 120,615
Loss for the peripd - - - (145,852}  {145,852)
Other comprehensive expsnse for the period - - (60) 1,657 1,597
Total comprehensive expense — - (60) (144,195)  (144,255)
Transactions with owners
Tax on share option schemes - - - (2,893) (2,993)
Employee sharg option schemes: value of
employee services - - - 2,733 2733
Issue of shares 113 73,63 - - 73,747
Treasury shares - issue of shares to seftle
employee share options - - - L 1
Total transactions with owners 113 73,634 - (259) 73,488
At 31 March 2017 223 152,056 (750) (101,881) 49,848
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 March 2017

1. Principal accounting policies

Basis of acoounting

The separate financial stataments of the Company are presentad as required by the Companies Act 2008. The Company meets

the definition of a qualifying entity under Financial Reporting Standard (‘FRS"} 100 issued by the Financial Reporting Council. !
Accordingly, the financial statements have therefore been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure

Framework” as issued by the Financlal Reporting Councll.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has teken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in
relation to share-based payment, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respact
of cortain assets, presentation of a cash-flow statement and certain related party transactions.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has prepared these financlal statements for the 52 week period to 31 March 2017, being the nearest Friday to the
end of the pariod.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concem basis and in accordance with the historical cost convention, except
for cortain financial Instruments that have been measured at fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same
as those set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements except as notad below. The critical accounting judgements
and key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impalmment.

Under FRS101 a company which is a member of a group that prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements
which give a true and fair view Is able to apply certaln financlal disclosure exemptions. The Company Intands to continue to
apply these exemptions to the Company’s financial statements for the year anding 31 March 2018. Shareholders wishing to
object to the use of these exemptions should contact the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office.

2. Result for the financial period
As permittad by Saction 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elscted not to present its own profit and loss account
for the year. The parent company’s ioss after taxation was €145.8 million (2016 €24.8 million}.

The avarage number of employses of the Company during the period was 283 {2016: 324) and total staff costs, excluding
charges for share optlons, were €25.2 million (2016; €28.8 million). Information on the remuneration of Directors is given in
those sections of the Directors’ Remuneration Report described as having been audited and Note 10 to the Company’s
consclidated financial statements, and those elements required by the Companies Act 2006.

The auditors’ remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements,
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements (continued)

For the period ended 31 March 2017

3. Tanglble assets

Assets
under Piant and T
consgtruction  machinery  equipment Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
Cost
At 2 April 2016 1,855 23,708 2,919 28,283
Forelgn exchange - {38) {1) 37y
Transfers {1,596) 1,506 - -
Additions 11 577 525 1,113
Disposals - (5,830) (1,771) {7,601)
At 31 March 2017 70 20,016 1,872 21,758
Accumulated dapreciation
At 2 April 2016 - 8,842 2,432 12,274
Foreign exchange - (15} - {15)
Charge for the period - 1.627 300 1,927
Impafment - 4,228 - 4,228
Disposals - (5.618) (1,765) (7,383)
At 31 March 2017 - 10,064 087 11,031
Net book value at 31 March 2017 70 p,852 705 10,727
Net book value at 1 April 2016 1,655 13,867 487 18,000

There was no capital expenditure at the end of either period which had been contracted for prior to the end of the period but not

pravided for In the financlal etatements.
4. Intangible assets

Capitalisation Software
of development and Similar
costs licences Total
€000 €000 €000
Cost
At 2 April 2016 127,340 6,496 133,836
Additions 4,587 579 5,168
Disposals - {3,336) (3,336)
At 31 March 2017 131,927 3,730 135,666
Accumulated amortisation
At 2 April 2016 88,167 3,807 92,0684
Charge for the period 7,663 338 8,201
Impairment 7.267 2,130 9,397
Disposals - (3,336) (3,336)
At 31 March 2017 103,207 3,020 106,326
Net book value at 31 March 2017 28,830 T10 28,340
Net book value at 1 April 2016 39,173 2,599 41,772

The only individually material intangible asset comprises the capitallsed development costs for the Next Generation platform,
which have a carrying value of €23.5 million at 31 March 2017 (2016: €29.1 million) and remalning amortisation period of 70

manths (2016: 82 months).

The events and circumatances which lad to the impalrment lpas recorded are disclosed in Note 15 of the consolidated financial

statements.

The amortisation charge for each period has been included within the following captions of the consclidated income statement:

2017 2016
€000 €000
Ressarch and development costs 7,863 3,574
Administrative expenses 338 312
8,201 3,886
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements (continued)

For the period ended 31 March 2017

5. Investments

2017 2016

Quasi-equity loan

Equity to a subsidiary

investment undertaking Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
Shares in Group undertakings

Al the beginning of the period 58,500 84,000 142,500 25,013
Acquisition of Teltronic SAU - - -~ 127,553
Impalment of investments - (79,400) {79,400) (10,072)
Additional Investment In existing subsidiary undertakings 1,000 - 1,000 -
Investment in newly-incorporated subsidiaries - - - 6
At the end of the period 59,500 4,600 64,100 142,500

The impairment charge for the current and prior periods reflact the impact of reduced forecast profitability of the Group’s

subsidlary undertakings.

The Company owns the entire fssued share capital of the following subsidiary undertakings, whose resuits are inciuded within

the consolidated financlal statements of Sepura pic for the year ended 31 March 2017:

Proportion of nominal
valuo of shares held by  Principaf

Name of undertaking Registerod Offica the Company activity
Sepura Systems GmbH Eitnergasse 13 1230 Vienna Austifa 100% Trading
Fylde Micro Limited 9000 Cambridge Research Park, Beach Drive, 100°% Trading
Waterbeach, Cambrdge, United Kingdom, CB25 8TL
Portalify OY Upseerinkatu 1-3 02600 Espoo Finland 100% Trading
Smashlat OY* Upsserinkatu 1-3 02600 Espoa Finland 100% Dormant
Sapura Deutschland GmbH Parkring 31 85748 Garching bel Minchen Germany 100% Sales
support
Sepura Sevigos de Intermediagdo e Rua Butants, 461 - Confunto 62 Edificio Bulanta - 100% Sales
Marketing em Equipamentos da Radio  Pinheiros CEP 05424-140 S#o Paulo / SP Brazil support
Lida*
Sepura LLC Suite 1300 11767 Katy Fwy Houston TX 77079 USA 100% Sales
support
Sepura Mexico, S.A. da C V. Navarra 210 Benlto Juarez Distrito Federal 03400 100% Sales
support
Sepura Overseas Limited 9000 Cambridge Rassarch Park, Beach Drive, 100% Hokding
Waterbeach, Cambridge, Unlted Kingdom, CB25 8TL company
Sepura Ply Limited 17/270 Ferntree Guily Road, Notting Hill, Victorla 100% Sales
3168, Australia support
Sepura Spain Holdings SL Poligono Malpica, calle F-Oeste, Zaragoza, Spain 100% Holding
company
Teltronic S.AU.* A Paligono Malpica, calle F-Oests, Zaragoza, Spain 100% Trading
Powertrunk fnc* 615 South DuPont Highway, Daver, Kent County, 100% Trading
Delaware 19801
Powertrunk Groupe, Inc * 3700-800 Place Victoria, Monireal, Guebec. H4Z 1E9,  100% Dormant
Canada
Teltrenic Andina Lida * Edificio Centrc Elective Il 100% Trading
Calle 81 N° 11-88, Oficinas: 413-414, Bogota, D.C.
Colombia
Teitronic Peru * Calle Los Tulipanes, 147 Edlificio Blu. Oficina 1103 100% Trading
Urb. Lima Polo & Hunt Club Santiago de Surco Lima
Peru
Teltronic Brasl!l Ltda * Avenlda dos Imarnés, n. 765, Indiandpolls, Brazll, ZIP 100% Trading
D4.085-001.
Teltronic Singapur PTE Ltd * 3 Anscn Road, #27-01 Springleaf Tower. 079908 100% Trading
Singapore
Teltronic SA Company Ltd * PO Box 864, Jeddah 21421, Saudl Arabla 100% Trading
Teltronic Redes y Serv., SAU * Poligono Malpica, calle F-Oeste, Zaragoza, Spain 100% Dormant
* Held indirectly
The Directors believe that the camying value of the investmants is supported by their underlying net assets.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements (continued)

For the period ended 31 March 2017

9. Stocks
2017 2016
€'000 €000
Raw materials 3,534 2,903
Work in progress 3,126 2,714
Finished goods and goods for resale 6,282 7,780
12,842 13,397

Stock is stated after provision for impairment of €8,291,000 (2016; €4,856,000). There is no material difference between the
balance sheet value of the stock and its replacement value.

7. Debtors

2017 2016
€'000 €000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade receivables 21,505 29,451
Less: provision for impaiment of receivables (6,361) (2,654)
Trade receivables {net) 15,124 26,797
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 10,163 11,762
RDEC raceivable 1,929 3,375
Other receivables 549 2,100
Prepayments and accrued income 2,935 1.904
Deferred tax assat {Note 8) 1,406 9,603
32,108 55,541

8. Deferred tax

The Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities totalled €6,852,000 {(2016: €17,251,000) and €5,448,000 (2016: €7,648,000)

respactively relate to timing differences in respect of:

. Capitafised Tangible Equity-settlied

development Cash-flow fixed share
costs hedges assets Losses options Net
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €'000
At 2 April 2016 {7.648) 301 1,789 12,499 2,662 9,603
Recognised in income 2,208 - 1,448 (9,008} 546 (4,897)
Recognisad in equity - (307} - - (2,893) {3,300)
At 31 March 2017 {5,440} {6) 3,237 3,400 215 1,406

Deferred tax liabilittes have been offset against deferred tax assots as there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assots and current tax liabilities within the same fiscal jurisdiction.

The Group’s defammad tax assets have been recognised in accordance with IAS 12 to the extent that, based on historical
petformance and future budgets, the Directors bellave that it Is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
the assats will revarse. In the light of the reduction in forecast profitability of the Group €13,975,000 of potential deferred tax

assels relafing to trading losses have not been recognised.

The Finance Act 2015, which provides for reductions in the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% sffective from 1 Apnil
2017 to 31 March 2020 and 18% effective from 1 April 2020, was substantively enacted on 18 Novembar 2015.

A further reduction in the main rate of corporation tax from 18% to 17% from 1 Apiil 2020 was announced in the March 2016
Budget, and was substantively enacted as part of Finance Bill 2018 on 6 September 2016. These rate reductions have been

reflected in the calculation of deferred tax at the balance sheet date.

9. Restricted cash

The Company recelved €3.2 million of advance payments from a tuatomer in FY16 that ware treated as “restricted cash’ in
accordance with IAS 7 “Statement of cash flows” as, although the funds were beld in a separate amount in the Company’s
name, they were not avallable for general use until predetermined periods had lapsed following the delivering of the related

goods. All of the periods lapsad during FY17, lifting all such rastrictions.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements (continued)
For the period ended 31 March 2017

10. Derlvative financlal Instruments

Derivative finandlal instruments comprise foreign exchange forward contracts. Further details are given In Note 30 tfo the

Company’s consolidated financial statements.

11. Borrowings
Borrowings outstanding at the end of the period

2017 2016

€'000 €000
Bank borrowings, all of which are denominated in Euros, are repayable as follows:
Within one year 77,4683 70,454
In the secend year 190 9,676
In the third to fifth year inclusive - 28,825

77,652 108,955

Less: amounts due for settlement within 12 months
{shown under current liabilities) {77,483) (70,454)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 190 38,501
Further detalfs of the faclilties the Company has entered infc are given in Note 22 ta the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
12. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2017 2016

€'000 €000
Trade payables 8,188 17,662
Other taxation and sodal security D44 1,855
Accruals and deferred income 10,573 13,774
Borrowings (Note 11) 77483 70,454
Derivative financial instruments - 2,018
Income tax payabie as -

97,208 105,761

Creditors: amounts fafling due after more than one year

2017 2016

€'000 €000
Borrowings 190 38,501
Accruals and deferred income 2075 4,229

2,285 42,730
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements (continued)
For the period ended 31 March 2017

13. Provislon for ||abllities

2017 2018
Warranty Contingent Warranty Contingent
provision conslderation Total provislon considaration Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
At the beginning of the period 1,249 3,191 4,440 896 6,998 7,884
Foreign exchange - {126) {128) - - -
Subsequent release of part of the
contingent consideration - (408) (408) - {2,827) (2,627)
Charged to the profit and loss
account 345 - 345 353 - 353
Settled or utilised in period {536) {1,782) (2,319) - {1,180) {1,180)
At the end of the period 1,058 877 1,835 1,249 3,181 4,440
Less amounts due for settlement
within 12 months (287) {877) {1,174) (675) (3,191) {3,866)
Amounts due for setiement after 12
months 761 - 781 574 - 574
Warranty provision

The warmanty provision is an estimate of the future costs of rectifying potential defects in products shipped to customers whiist
they are under warranty cover, Warranty cover ls typically provided over a peniod of threa to five years, depending on the
product and territory concerned. The Company also has back-to-back warranties of between twelve and fiftoen months with the
majority of its sub-contract manufacturers to limit risk on lrabilities arising on manufacturing defects.

Contingent consideration

Contingent consideration of up to €4.9 million and €2.1 milllon was payabie to the previous owners of Portalify OY and Fykie
Micro Limited respectively In the event that revenue and operating profit targets were met over a certain perod, €1.8 millioh was
paid during the period to the previous owners of Fylde Micro Limited. Management have considered that, based on the final
calculation, up to €0.9 millloh may be payable in relation to Portalify OY but no amount has yet been accepted by the previous
owners.

14, Called up share capital
The movements in share capital, the share premium account and treasury shares are disclosad in Note 25 to the consolidated

financial staternents.

The dividends paié in the year are disclosed in Note 14 of the consolidated financial statements. The Diractors have aot
recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year.

15, Share based payments
information on share options which have been granted to Directors and employees is given in Note 26 to the consolidated

financial stafements.

16. Operating lease commitments
‘The future aggregate minimum leass paymenis under non-cancellable operating leasas are as follows:

2017 2016

Plant and Plant and
machinery Property Total machinery Property Total
€'000 €'000 €000 €000 €000 €000
No later than one year 357 1,421 1,778 427 28 456
Later than one year and no later than five years 257 §,778 6,035 751 5561 6,302
More than five years - 11,208 11,208 - 13,490 13,490
614 18,407 19,021 1,178 18,070 20,248

17. Coniingent liabiiities
The Company has enterad Into guarantee and performance bond arrangements with its customers totalling approximately €0.2

million {2016: €0.9 million). The Company is also subject to disputes with suppllers during the ordinary course of business.
Provision Is made for any amounts that the Directors consider will probably become payabie under such arrangements,

Under sectlons 394A and 479A of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has guaranteed all of the outstanding liabilites of
Fylde Micre Limited es at 31 March 2017, which totalled €11,000, until they are satisfied in full. The guarantee is enforceable
against the Company by any person to whom any such liability is dus.
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements (continued)
For the period ended 31 March 2017

18. Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption avallable fo parent companles under FRS 101:8(j) and FRS 101:8(k) not
to discloss key management personnsel compensation and transactions and balances with wholly owned subsidiary

undertakings.

18. Ultimate controlling party
The Directors do not consider that Sepura plc had an uitimate controlling party as of 31 March 2017, as no individual

shareholder was able to exetclse contral over the Company,
Following the completion of the Acquigition on 25 May 2017, the Directors consider that:

H the immediate parent company is Project Shortway Limited, @ company registered in England and Wales;
’ tho ultimate parent company is Hytera Communications Corporetion Limited, a company incorporated in the People's
Republic of China; and

» tha ultimate contreliing party is Mr Chen Qingzhou who is the malority voting rights holder in Hyteras Communications
Corparation Limited

20. Post balance sheet svent
Information on post balance sheet events is provided in Nota 34 of the consolidatad financial statemants.
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